
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (4) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 30 November 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 - 18.03 - 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members:  Councillors: 
  Angela Piddock (Chair) 

Md Shamsed Chowdhury 
Karen Scarborough 

    
 Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and 

listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda.  
 
Admission to the public gallery is via a visitor’s pass which is 
available from the main ground floor reception at 64 Victoria 
Street from 9.30am.  
 
If you have a disability and require any special assistance, please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of 
the meeting.  
 
An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing 
a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  
 
If you require further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Katherine Stagg, Committee and Councillor Co-ordinator. 
 
Email: kstagg@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 
 Licensing Applications for Determination 

 
 

 
1.   8 CARLOS PLACE, W1K 3AW (Pages 1 - 196) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West End 
  
* None 
  
** None 
  

8 Carlos Place 
W1K 3AW 
  

New 
Premises 
Licence 

23/05024/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

 

3

2.   KOYN, 38 GROSVENOR STREET, W1K 4QU (Pages 197 - 
234) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West End 
  
* None 
  
** None 
  

Koyn 
38 Grosvenor Street 
W1K 4QU 
  

Premises 
Licence 
Variation 

23/05443/LIPV 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  

 

 
3.   PETITE CAFE LONDON, 102 GREAT PORTLAND STREET, 

W1W 6PD 
(Pages 235 - 

302) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & Address Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West 
End 
  
* 
None 
  
** 
None 
  

Petite Café London 
102 Great Portland 
Street 
W1W 6PD 
  

New Premises 
Licence 

23/05399/LIPN 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  
 

 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
22 November 2023 
 
 



 
 

 

4

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  
Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  
Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  
Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 
Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 
Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  
Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  12:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

5

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



page 1

Agenda Item 1.



page 2



page 3



page 4



page 5



page 6



page 7



page 8



page 9



page 10



page 11



are higher risk than theatres, cinemas and other cultural and sporting 
venues due to the nature of the operation. 
11. The Licensing Authority will take into account the active measures 
proposed for a ‘winding down’ period including arrangements for 
people to be collected from the premises to travel home safely. 
12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a suitable period of 
time before customers are required to leave the premises. 
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours if, 
after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying shorter 
hours in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities and 
interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable activities 
may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of applications 
for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into account that 
later hours are generally granted for preceding Sundays and that the 
next day is a working day. Non-specific days are expected to be 
covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation applications. 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for this 
application as defined within this policy are: 

8. Restaurants  
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm.  
Friday and Saturday: 9am to Midnight.  
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm.  
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to Midnight. 
 

Policy RNT1(A) 
applies 

A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, PN1 
and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol and/or 
Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1.  
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration Zones 
Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated zone.  
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition of 

a restaurant as per Clause C. 
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as:  
1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or the 
customer will select a table themselves to which food is either served to 
them or they have collected themselves.  
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a table.  
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink for 
immediate consumption, except if provided via an ancillary delivery 
service to customers at their residential or workplace address.  
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption of 
alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be in a 
bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such meal. 
 

page 12



page 13



page 14



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 

 
 

 
 
 

page 15



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 16



 
 

 

 
 

page 17



 
Applicant Supporting Documents                      Appendix 2 
 

 
 
 

page 18



 
 

page 19



 
 

page 20



 
 

page 21



 

page 22



 

page 23



 
 

page 24



 
 

page 25



 
 

page 26



 
 

page 27



 

page 28



 

page 29



 

page 30



 

page 31



 

page 32



 

page 33



 

page 34



 

page 35



 

page 36



 

page 37



 

page 38



 

page 39



 

page 40



 

page 41



 

page 42



 

page 43



 

page 44



 

page 45



 

page 46



 

page 47



 

page 48



Paris Society International Holding Ltd

8 Carlos Place, Mayfair, W1K 3AS 

Transport Statement

November 2023

page 49



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023

Contents
1 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................... 1

2 EXISTING SITUATION...........................................................................................................2

Site Location..........................................................................................................................................2

Local Highway Network .....................................................................................................................3

Controlled Parking Zone and Parking Occupancy ......................................................................4

Taxi Ranks ..............................................................................................................................................6

Evening Activity ....................................................................................................................................6

3 ACCESSIBILITY........................................................................................................................8

Active Modes.........................................................................................................................................8

Walking...................................................................................................................................................8

Cycling .................................................................................................................................................. 10

Public Cycle Parking .......................................................................................................................... 12

Public Transport ................................................................................................................................. 12

Bus Services ......................................................................................................................................... 13

Underground Services ...................................................................................................................... 13

Rail Services ......................................................................................................................................... 14

Car Clubs .............................................................................................................................................. 15

4 PROPOSALS .......................................................................................................................... 16

5 TRANSPORT MOVEMENT ANALYSIS ............................................................................. 17

Guest Movements .............................................................................................................................. 17

Staffing ................................................................................................................................................. 18

Servicing ............................................................................................................................................... 19

6 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION.......................................................................................22

Conclusion ...........................................................................................................................................22

Appendices
Appendix A - WCC Parking Data

Appendix B - PTAL Summary

Appendix C - Layout Plans

Appendix D - Occupancy Data

page 50



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 1

1 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Caneparo Associates are instructed by Paris Society International Holding Ltd (“the Applicant”) 

to provide traffic and transportation advice in relation to the proposed use of 8 Carlos Place as

a fine dining restaurant.

1.2 My name is Nick Bond, I hold a Bachelor of Engineering Honours degree in Civil Engineering

and a Master of Science degree in Transportation Planning and Management. I am a Chartered

Member of the Institute of Logistics and Transport.

1.3 I am a Director of Caneparo Associates, a company that specialises in providing traffic and

transport advice to the private sector and have over 25 years of experience in the transport

assessment of development proposals, including many premises relating to the night time

economy.

1.4 This report was prepared following several visits to the site and the surrounding area, both

during the day and in the late evening.

1.5 The remainder of my report is set out as follows:

• Section 2 sets out the existing situation;

• Section 3 considers the site’s accessibility;

• Section 4 provides a summary of the proposals, in particular the access arrangements;

• Section 5 reviews the expected transport characteristics of the proposals; and

• Section 6 summarises and concludes.

page 51



page 52



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 3

Local Highway Network

Carlos Place

2.3 Carlos Place operates in a broadly north-south orientation to the west of the site connecting

Grosvenor Square to the north with Mount Street to the south. The site’s main entrance fronts 
onto Carlos Place. Outside the site, Carlos Place is circa 7m in width and offers two-way traffic

flow subject to a speed limit of 20mph.

2.4 On the east side of Carlos Place towards the south of the site frontage a taxi bay is provided

which is circa 10m in length and therefore offers space for 2 waiting taxis. In the vicinity of the

site, the remainder of Carlos Place is controlled by double yellow lines which prevent parking

on-street at all times, but allow passengers to be dropped off or collected.

2.5 The footway is relatively wide at the entrance to 8 Carlos Place as indicated in the image below.

Cycle parking is provided for with 4 Sheffield stands in place, these were well utilised in the day

as indicated in the image below, but empty in the evening.

page 53



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 4

Mount Row

2.6 Mount Row operates in a broadly east-west orientation to the north of the site connecting

Davies Street to the east with Carlos Place to the west. Outside the site, Mount Row is circa 7.5m

in width and offers two-way traffic flow subject to a speed limit of 20mph.

2.7 On the south side of Mount Row outside the site frontage a taxi bay is provided which is circa

25m in length and therefore offers space for 5 waiting taxis. In addition, there are 3 pay by phone

bays on the north side of Mount Row close to the site which allow for 4 hours of parking with

no return within 1 hour. Several resident permit holder bays for the Controlled Parking Zone

(CPZ) ‘E’ are provided on both sides of the carriageway on Mount Row.

2.8 The junctions at each end of Mount Row are controlled by double yellow lines which prevent

parking at all times, while the remaining sections of Mount Row are controlled by single yellow

lines which prevent parking within the hours that CPZ ‘E’ operates.

Controlled Parking Zone and Parking Occupancy
2.9 The site is located within the WCC CPZ ‘E’ which is operational Monday – Saturday, 08:30 – 18:30,

so single yellow lines can be parked on outside of these hours. Resident bays are controlled at

all times of day, so restaurant patrons will not impact upon the ability of residents to park in the

vicinity – with regular parking enforcement patrols observed in the area.

2.10 Pay by phones bays are provided locally, with a maximum stay of 4 hours with payment required

Monday – Saturday, 08:30 – 18:30. These bays were observed to be well used during the day

when both nearby dining and retail facilities are open, but with capacity in the evening.

2.11 In addition to the taxi ranks, black cabs, private hire vehicles and cars are able to drop off and

collect passengers from the single and double yellow lines in the vicinity.

2.12 Westminster City Council (WCC) collect parking survey data for the area and their data for the

streets within 200m of the site was requested, with the full 2022 data attached at Appendix A.

Data was collected by WCC for the following time periods:

• Weekday 00:00-06:00

• Weekday 07:30-09:30

• Weekday 11:00-15:00

• Weekday 19:00-23:00

page 54



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 5

• Saturday 00:00-06:00

• Saturday 11:00-15:00

• Saturday 19:00-00:00

• Sunday 00:00-06:00

• Sunday 11:00-15:00

• Sunday 18:00-20:00

• Monday 00:00-06:00

2.13 Matching our site visit observations, there is limited pay by phone bay availability shown in the

WCC data during the day when both nearby dining and retail facilities are both open, as

summarised below, but with significant spare capacity in the evening once the retail premises

have closed. Lengths of single yellow line also offer evening parking opportunities and are

lightly used.

2.14 Resident bays are busier during the daytime, but remain below the 85%-90% parking occupancy

level where parking stress and the need to circulate to find a space starts. Resident bays are

unlikely to be utilised by patrons of the proposed restaurant.

Weekday 11:00-15:00 Bays Parked Suspended Occupancy

Disabled Bays 8 3 0 38%

Resident Bay 118 86 9 79%

Pay by Phone / Pay & Display 113 92 16 95%

Shared Use Bay 35 31 2 94%

Single Yellow 197 33 3 17%

Weekday 19:00-23:00 Bays Parked Suspended Occupancy

Disabled Bays 8 2 0 25%

Resident Bay 118 68 0 58%

Pay by Phone / Pay & Display 113 70 0 62%

Shared Use Bay 35 20 0 57%

Single Yellow 197 25 0 13%

Saturday 00:00-06:00 Bays Parked Suspended Occupancy

Disabled Bays 8 1 0 13%

Resident Bay 118 67 6 60%

Pay by Phone / Pay & Display 113 29 16 30%

Shared Use Bay 35 10 2 30%

Single Yellow 197 17 4 9%

page 55



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 6

Taxi Ranks 
2.15 The sign plates on the adjacent taxi ranks show that a rank for 2 taxis is on Carlos Place, 5 Taxis

on Mount Row and 4 on Adams Row. At our lunch time site visit 4-5 black cabs were observed

to be available and a similar number in the evening.

2.16 Private hire vehicles were also observed to be waiting in the vicinity during both time periods,

though aside from the taxi rank on Carlos Place, no usage was made of the yellow lines on the

site frontage to Carlos Place. This is in line with the Westminster City Council parking survey data

that demonstrates little occupancy of lengths of single yellow line in the area.

Evening Activity  
2.17 The Connaught Hotel is located on the opposite side of Carlos Place, with The Biltmore Hotel

and Scott’s and Bacchanalia, the Mount Street Restaurant and 34 Mayfair amongst the 
restaurants located in the surrounding area.

2.18 Walking the area on both a Thursday and Saturday evening between midnight and 1am, patrons

were observed leaving these premises in an orderly manner with no behaviour observed such

as the slamming of car doors, revving of engines, or the gathering of large groups of people

talking that could materially impact upon residential amenity.

2.19 The sign plates on the adjacent taxi ranks show that a rank for 2 taxis is on Carlos Place, 5 Taxis

on Mount Row and 4 on Adams Row. At our lunch time site visit 4-5 black cans were observed

to be available and a similar number in the evening.

Saturday 11:00-15:00 Bays Parked Suspended Occupancy

Disabled Bays 8 4 0 50%

Resident Bay 118 69 5 61%

Pay by Phone / Pay & Display 113 61 13 61%

Shared Use Bay 35 19 2 58%

Single Yellow 197 9 4 5%

Saturday 19:00-00:00 Bays Parked Suspended Occupancy

Disabled Bays 8 6 0 75%

Resident Bay 118 70 9 64%

Pay by Phone / Pay & Display 113 60 16 62%

Shared Use Bay 35 17 2 52%

Single Yellow 197 28 3 14%

page 56



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 7

2.20 Private hire vehicles were also observed to be waiting in the vicinity during both time periods,

though aside from the taxi rank on Carlos Place, no usage was made of the yellow lines on the

site frontage to Carlos Place.

page 57



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 8

3 ACCESSIBILITY
3.1 The site is accessible by all modes with a good network of footways, cycle facilities and public

transport services in the immediate vicinity.

Active Modes
3.2 The Healthy Streets Approach is set out as part of the Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018) and 

puts human health and experience at the centre of planning. The aims of the strategy are to

encourage all Londoners to do at least 20 minutes of active travel each day by 2041. To this end

TfL has defined 20-minute walking and cycling distances as an Active Travel Zone (ATZ).

Walking
3.3 Sufficient footways are located along Carlos Place, ranging between circa 3m to 9m in width

near the site frontage, which is appropriate for the potential pedestrian footfall generated by

the proposed development.

3.4 A crossing point is located circa 20m south of the site on Carlos which is equipped with dropped

kerbs, tactile paving and a pedestrian refuge island therefore providing a good opportunity for

pedestrians to cross. In addition, there are many opportunities for pedestrians to cross freely

between the carriageway surrounding the site due to the presence of dropped kerbs and tactile

paving at the majority of nearby junctions.

3.5 The site is within an acceptable walking distance from a range of local amenities in the form of

retail facilities and public transport services. Within a 20-minute walking distance the site

benefits from access to destinations such as; Oxford Street, Hyde Park, Green Park,

Knightsbridge, and Regent Street. The 20-minute walking isochrone for the site is displayed in

Figure 3.1 below.

page 58



page 59



page 60



page 61



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 12

Public Cycle Parking
3.10 There are a number of Sheffield stands within the local area to the site offering short-stay cycle

parking to the immediate community. In total, 60 on-street short-stay cycle parking spaces are

available within a 3-minute walk of the site, as detailed below:

• Carlos Place (8 Sheffield stand spaces); located 10m west of the site;

• Southeast of Grosvenor Square (20 Sheffield stand spaces); located 120m north of the

site;

• Davies Street (14 cycle stand spaces); located 170m east of the site; and

• Northeast of Grosvenor Square (18 Sheffield stand spaces); located 220m north of the

site.

Public Transport

Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) Rating

3.11 Public Transport Accessibility Levels (PTALs) are a theoretical measure of the accessibility of a

given point to the public transport network, taking into account walk access time and service

availability.

3.12 The PTAL is categorised in six levels, 1 to 6 where 6 represents an excellent level of accessibility

and 1 a poor level of accessibility. It is then further sub-sectioned into ‘a’ and ‘b’, with ‘a’ being 
at the lower end of the spectrum and ‘b’ at the higher.

3.13 The assessment methodology reflects:

• Walking time from the point of interest to the public transport access points;

• The reliability of the service modes available;

• The number of services available within the catchment; and

• The level of service at the public transport access points – i.e. average waiting time.

3.14 The PTAL rating of the centre of the site is 6b, the highest possible score available which

represents excellent access to public transport.

3.15 Appendix B contains the TfL PTAL summary.

page 62



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 13

Bus Services
3.16 The nearest bus stops to the site are located near Berkeley Square (Berkeley Square Stops ‘V’ & 

‘X’) circa 280-370m / 4-5 minutes’ walk from the site. Further bus stops are located outside 
Selfridges on Oxford Street (Selfridges Stops ‘BC’ & ‘BX’) circa 460-500m north (6 minutes’ walk) 
and also near Green Park Station (Green Park Station Stops ‘H’ & ‘J’) circa 730-800m south of

the site (9-10 minutes’ walk).

3.17 All of these stops have timetable information provided and a bus stand, while most feature a

bus shelter and real time bus information boards.

3.18 The site is served by a total of 40 different bus services, including a total of 23 services that

operate at night from across the 6 bus stops described above.

3.19 In the daytime 23 services operate close to the site, providing access to destinations not limited

to Waterloo, Archway, Willesden, Victoria, Hammersmith and the City of London. These services

are the: 2, 6, 7, 9, 13, 14, 16, 19, 22, 23, 36, 38, 73, 74, 94, 98, 137, 139, 159, 189, 390, 414 and

436.

3.20 During the night, 23 services operate close to the site, providing access to destinations such as

Paddington, Kensington, Liverpool Street, King’s Cross and Victoria. These services are the: 6, 13, 
14, 23, 36, 94, 139, 159, 189, 390, N2, N7, N9, N19, N22, N32, N38, N74, N97, N98, N113, N137

and N207.

3.21 Most of the services are accessible within the 640m walk pedestrians are expected to make to

access bus services within the PTAL measure, however it is expected that for the night services

people may walk the 70-160m further to reach the Green Park Station bus stops, given their

useful amenity and location close to Green Park Underground station where many people would

travel anyway (as it is within the 960m walking distance for rail services).

Underground Services
3.22 Bond Street is the closest London Underground station to the site, located circa 500m (6

minutes’ walk) north from the site. Further services can be accessed from Green Park which is 
circa 730m (9 minutes’ walk) south of the site, while alternative Central Line access can be

achieved from Marble Arch which is located 910m / 11 minutes walk. Both Bond Street and

Green Park Underground stations have step-free access to all platforms. Table 3.2 details the

London Underground services that operate close to the site, along with details about their peak

frequency and night frequency (Friday and Saturday only).

page 63



page 64



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 15

• 2 tph to Heathrow Terminal 5; and

• 1 tph to Maidenhead.

3.25 The last service for the Elizabeth Line is at 00:25 eastbound and 00:32 westbound.

Car Clubs
3.26 There are several existing car club vehicles in the vicinity of the site, operated by Zipcar car club.

The closest car club bay locations within the vicinity of the site are set out below:

• Zipcar x2 East side of Grosvenor Square (180m / 2minutes’ walk north of the site);

• Zipcar x1 on Fitzmaurice Place (400m / 5 minutes’ walk southeast of the site); and

• Zipcar x1 on Providence Court (410m / 5 minutes’ walk northwest of the site).

page 65



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 16

4 PROPOSALS
4.1 The premises has a Class E use so planning permission for the entertainment use was not

required, with no planning restrictions relating to the use.

4.2 The applicant has applied for a capacity of circa 250 with a closing time of 1.30am Monday to

Saturday and midnight on Sundays.

4.3 The proposed layout plans are at Appendix C, with the building to be laid out as follows:

• Basement – storage and preparation area. Customer and staff toilet areas;

• Ground – entrance area, boutique and bar;

• First floor - Restaurant areas;

• Second floor – restaurant/salon areas;

• Third floor – hot and cold kitchen; and

• Fourth floor – salon and back of house areas.

4.4 The footway locally widens out adjacent to 8 Carlos Place, with 6 steps within the site before the

entrance doors, which are expected to be held open during service, and a spacious 6m deep

entrance area will be provided, allowing ample circulation space for patrons both when entering

and leaving the premises, such that any queuing of guests can be accommodated within the

building.

4.5 A taxi rank adjacent to the premises will assist in the smooth dispersal of guests, and as set out

in Section 2 of this report, our observations and WCC parking survey data demonstrate that

there is material spare capacity in the surrounding pay by phone bays and areas of single yellow

and double yellow lines to allow for both for any private car parking that may arise due to

patrons and black cab and private hire vehicle drop offs and collections.

4.6 Bookings will be available in 15 minute slots, and managed to match kitchen and table capacity,

to spread arrivals and departures through the evening, and to avoid undue concentrations of

people arriving or departing at the same time.

4.7 The restaurant aspires to offer a fine dining experience that will accommodate high end clientele.

It is acknowledged that even though the site is highly accessible and guests may travel by public

transport, many guests will opt to travel by car, taxi or a chauffeured vehicle.

page 66



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 17

5 TRANSPORT MOVEMENT ANALYSIS

Guest Movements
5.1 Given the operation of the premises as a fine dining establishment, small groups of people

would be expected to arrive and depart gradually during the lunch time and dinner service times,

rather than a large group of people arriving or leaving in a concentrated time window as would

be experienced at for example a music venue, or a theatre where events have a set start and

finish times.

5.2 The vast majority of tables would be pre-booked with an arrival time linked to the capacity of

the kitchen, with a proportion of guests using the bar area before or after their meal.

5.3 The Paris Society International Holding Ltd operate another venue in a similar manner at Louie,

located at 13-15 West Street. Louie currently serves Dinner on Tuesday to Saturday from 18:00

to 22:30, with drinks available Tuesday to Friday from 18:00 to 02:00 and on Saturday from 17:00-

02:00am. Their busiest period is typically on a Saturday evening and so as summarised below

occupancy data, as provided at Appendix D, was collected for a Saturday evening in order to

indicate the typical build up and decrease in patron numbers over the evening.

Table 5.1 - Louie Occupancy

5.4 The data shows peak occupancy at 21:00 to 23:00, with less than 50% of this peak remaining at

02:00.

5.5 Based on the operator’s and our experience of similar venues we would expect approximately 
55% of guests to arrive by taxi/private car or limousine and 45% on foot having utilised public

transport or arriving having called first at a nearby venue. On departing across the evening of

Time Total Headcount % of Peak

19:00 66 29%

20:00 137 60%

21:00 229 100%

22:00 230 100%

23:00 218 95%

00:00 199 87%

01:00 117 51%

02:00 110 48%

02:30 0 0%

page 67



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 18

the order of 65% would be expected to leave by taxi/private car or limousine and 35% on foot

to head to another venue or to utilise public transport.

5.6 Based on a worst case scenario with 8 Carlos Place full to capacity, the occupancy figures would

translate to the below.

Table 5.2 - Predicted Occupancy

5.7 If we assumed that all 250 patrons that the venue could hold arrived between 20:00 and 21:00

this would equate to 138 people arriving by car/taxi and 113 on foot. Allowing for on average

two guests to travel together in the same vehicle this would give 69 vehicles arriving across the

peak arrival hour, or roughly one vehicle every minute, which could be readily accommodated

on the highway adjacent to the site as evidenced by WCC parking survey data and my site

observations.

5.8 Allowing for 127 guests to depart across 30 minutes before the premises close would equate to

41 vehicles across 30 minutes, the majority expected to be taxis collecting from Carlos Place

itself, with 44 guests departing on foot, which again can be readily accommodated on the

surrounding transport network. The vehicle numbers will not represent a material increase upon

those observed to be already present as background traffic on Carlos Place and the surrounding

roads.

Staffing
5.9 The restaurant will require the services of approximately 40 staff members in the evening with

employees departing on a daily basis between 11pm and 2am. The impact of an additional 40

people departing over a 3 hour period is not expected to cause significant disruption to

residential amenity.

Time
Predicted

Headcount
% of Peak

19:00 72 29%

20:00 149 60%

21:00 249 100%

22:00 250 100%

23:00 237 95%

00:00 216 87%

01:00 127 51%

page 68



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 19

5.10 Staff will be encouraged to use night bus or tube services where possible, or where required a

taxi pick up from Carlos Place will be arranged to ensure minimal disruption to neighbouring

properties.

Servicing
5.11 As set out in the venue’s service management plan, deliveries will be directed to the fire escape

door to lower ground Street entrance. Delivery vehicles will unload on the adjacent area of single

yellow line on Mount Row and deliver to the fire exit door by trolley and using a platform lift.

5.12 Once inside the deliveries will be taken down one set of stairs to at storage room at basement

level 1 off the fire escape. Goods will be stored within the storerooms and then from here taken

to the bar and kitchen areas at ground floor and third floor level. (main kitchen) via a

dumbwaiter. The goods will be taken to designated storage areas at this level, allowing deliveries

to be directed straight into store, minimising impact at street level.

5.13 Restaurant staff will be allocated to assist with the arrival of goods and this will ensure that

deliveries can occur quickly and efficiently. With goods transferred directly from the vehicle to

the storeroom at basement level 1, there will be no need for goods to be left on the public

highway and will therefore not cause obstruction or hazard.

5.14 It is estimated that there will be in the order of 10 deliveries and servicing trips per day. This will

include daily deliveries of fresh fruit and vegetables, fresh meat and fish, beverage deliveries,

linen, and waste collection. The majority of deliveries will be undertaken by specialist suppliers

and therefore undertaken by light goods vehicles and small rigid lorries. All deliveries will be

consolidated where possible and scheduled such that they are staggered. This will ensure that

multiple deliveries do not arrive at the same time.

5.15 The restaurant manager will be responsible for the ongoing management and monitoring of

deliveries associated with the restaurant. Suppliers will be advised of the delivery arrangements

at the restaurant in advance of arrival and deliveries will be pre-booked. Delivery drivers will be

asked to undertake deliveries in a swift and quiet manner. These measures will ensure that any

noise and disturbance associated with deliveries is kept to an absolute minimum.

5.16 It is generally considered that the number of deliveries associated with the restaurant will not

increase significantly the traffic levels above those already existing on the road network.

page 69



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 20

5.17 Deliveries will typically take place between 07:00 and 10:00, such that fresh produce can be

prepared ahead of the lunch and dinner times. The proposed licence conditions will prevent any

deliveries or refuse collection between 23:00 and 07:30.

5.18 Refuse collections associated with the restaurant are not expected to differ from the existing

arrangement for the restaurants in the vicinity and as such should not have a material impact

on the surrounding road network. The use of the Westminster Waste service will ensure that

segregated waste will be collected alongside that from other local restaurants.

Dispersal Plan

5.19 A dispersal plan has been produced for the venue. It sets out the management measures

proposed to be adopted to ensure that arrivals and departures are sufficiently managed in order

to minimise potential disruption to local residents.

5.20 The plan includes specific details relevant to the, access arrangements, security details, staff

departures and details on the arrangement of how guests will be directed to and from the

restaurant and their mode of transport.

5.21 The following practices will also be implemented to ensure that any potential impact associated

with the arrival and departure of guests is reduced:

• Confirmation emails will be sent to customers prior to their reservation providing details

of the location of the restaurant, easiest access by public transport, parking opportunities

and opening times.

• A Maître d’ will greet all guests on arrival, ensuring guests are taken swiftly from reception 
down to the restaurant. The entrance area and bar will accommodate early/late arrivals.

• To limit clients seeking to stand out of the building to smoke, a smoking area, supervised

by security staff, will be located on the 1st floor terrace area.

• All chauffeured cars can be directed by doormen to use the Grosvenor Hill car park at 21

Grosvenor Hill. Drivers will be called ahead when guests are ready to leave the restaurant.

• Vehicles arriving to drop-off or collect customers will be directed to do so on Carlos Place.

• A security team will be available at the front door to monitor capacity, car/taxis on Carlos

Place and any other activity taking place on Carlos Place or Mount Row.

• Guests waiting to be picked up can be held in the bar/entrance area until their car has

arrived, to ensure guests are not waiting on the pavement.

page 70



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 21

• Guests departing on foot headed for Green Park or Bond Street station will be given

directions where necessary.

• Guests looking for a taxi will be first directed to the taxi rank on Carlos Place.

page 71



Transport Statement: 8 Carlos Place

P:\2023\5262 - 8 Carlos Place\Reports\R01-NB-Transport Statement F1 (231121).docx

November 2023 22

6 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
6.1 The site is located within a highly accessible area that achieves a PTAL rating of 6b, the highest

score possible. As such many guests associated with the restaurant can travel by sustainable

modes.

6.2 The expected number of trips generated by the restaurant is unlikely to result in a detrimental

impact on public transport facilities or the local road network.

6.3 Parking surveys indicate that there is adequate spare parking capacity on roads within 200

metres of 8 Carlos Place during the evening period to accommodate any parking demand by

visitors or waiting taxis for the restaurant. Furthermore, there is additional off-street parking

capacity available nearby within the Grosvenor Hill and other car parks.

6.4 The restaurant would be serviced via Carlos Place and there would not be a noticeable change

in traffic conditions associated with deliveries.

6.5 The design of the premises and the width of the adjacent footway on Carlos Place will ensure

that those entering and leaving the restaurant will not interfere with the movement of other

pedestrians.

6.6 A dispersal management plan will be implemented specifically to manage arrivals and

departures, and parking, and to ensure minimum disruption takes place.

Conclusion
6.7 This Transport Statement considers the potential effects of the proposals on the transportation

network. This report illustrates that there would be no adverse traffic impact on the local

transport network with regards to accessibility, trip generation, parking and servicing matters.

6.8 Taking account of the capacity of the restaurant and its layout, observations of the surroundings,

the excellent accessibility to public transport and the availability of kerbside space for taxi drop

offs and collections, the proposals are considered acceptable in traffic and transportation terms.

page 72



Appendix A
WCC Parking Data

page 73



Westminster Surveys 2022 Full

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 1 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 1 0 0 0.41
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 3 0 0 1.22
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 3 7 0 2.22
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 4 6 0 50
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 19 10 0 21.35
Resident Bay 648.60 118 65 6 0 58.04
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 11 2 0 33.33
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 6 4 0 6.82
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 3 0 0 2.86
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 118 36 0 9.46

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 1 0 0 0.93
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 38 0 0 15.64
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 1 0 0 14.29
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 2 0 0 25
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 7 0 0 2.86
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 59 13 0 45.74
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 0 0 85.71
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 59 7 0 64.13
Resident Bay 648.60 118 72 5 0 63.72
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 17 0 0 48.57
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 11 3 0 12.36
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 21 1 0 20.19
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 3 0 0 21.43
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 1 0 0 2.17

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 307 29 0 24.46

page 74



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 54 0 0 22.22
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 3 0 0 42.86
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 3 0 0 37.50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 16 0 0 6.53
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 69 13 0 53.49
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 8 0 200
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 80 8 0 87.91
Resident Bay 648.60 118 86 9 0 78.90
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 31 2 0 93.94
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 13 3 0 14.61
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 20 0 0 19.05
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 3 0 0 21.43
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 1 0 0 2.17

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 396 43 0 31.91

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 2 0 0 1.85
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 1 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 7 0 0 2.88
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 2 0 0 28.57
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 2 0 0 25
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 8 0 0 3.27
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 41 0 7 28.87
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 0 6 85.71
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 58 0 10 58.59
Resident Bay 648.60 118 68 0 6 57.63
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 20 0 2 57.14
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 17 0 4 18.48
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 8 0 0 7.62
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 4 0 0 28.57
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 251 0 36 19.55

page 75



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 1 0 0 0.93
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 1 0 0 12.50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 5 0 13 3.52
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 3 0 0 21.43
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 26 0 7 26.26
Resident Bay 648.60 118 66 0 5 55.93
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 10 0 0 28.57
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 9 0 3 9.78
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 8 0 1 7.62
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 3 0 0 21.43
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 133 0 29 10.36

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 3 0 0 2.78
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 2 0 0 28.57
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 4 0 0 50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 2 0 0 0.82
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 9 0 13 6.34
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 7 0 8 50
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 54 0 8 54.55
Resident Bay 648.60 118 69 0 9 58.47
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 19 0 2 54.29
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 6 0 3 6.52
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 3 0 0 2.86
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 182 0 43 14.17

page 76



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 2 0 0 28.57
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 6 0 0 75
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 12 0 0 4.90
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 19 0 0 13.38
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 8 0 0 57.14
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 52 0 0 52.53
Resident Bay 648.60 118 70 0 0 59.32
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 17 0 0 48.57
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 17 0 0 18.48
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 11 0 0 10.48
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 2 0 0 14.29
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 220 0 0 17.13

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 1 0 0 12.50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 3 0 0 2.11
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 28 0 0 28.28
Resident Bay 648.60 118 59 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 6 0 0 17.14
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 8 0 0 8.70
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 4 0 0 3.81
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 1 0 0 7.14
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 110 0 0 8.57

page 77



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 1 0 0 0.93
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 2 0 0 28.57
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 1 0 0 12.50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 10 0 0 7.04
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 6 0 0 42.86
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 47 0 0 47.47
Resident Bay 648.60 118 50 0 0 42.37
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 16 0 0 45.71
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 18 0 0 19.57
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 7 0 0 6.67
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 1 0 0 7.14
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 162 0 0 12.62

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 2 1 0 200
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 2 0 0 28.57
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 5 0 0 62.50
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 6 0 0 2.45
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 15 7 0 11.11
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 6 6 0 75
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 47 10 0 52.81
Resident Bay 648.60 118 75 6 0 66.96
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 14 2 0 42.42
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 35 4 0 39.77
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 15 0 0 14.29
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 6 0 0 42.86
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 230 36 0 18.43

page 78



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Totals for all selected streets

Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Restriction Types

All Other Bays 557.90 108 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 61.10 243 9 0 0 3.70
Diplomat Bay 40.40 7 1 0 0 14.29
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 48.20 8 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 1,533.80 245 1 0 0 0.41
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 116.30 142 6 13 0 4.65
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 2 0 0 14.29
Pay by Phone Bay 570.10 99 9 7 0 9.78
Resident Bay 648.60 118 55 5 0 48.67
Resident Bay EV 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Shared Use Bay 182.90 35 11 0 0 31.43
Single Yellow 1 518.20 92 4 3 0 4.49
Single Yellow 2 602.30 105 4 1 0 3.85
Taxi Bay 80.80 14 1 0 0 7.14
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 393.40 46 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5,487.50 1,284 104 29 0 8.29

page 79



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 43.70 8 5 1 0 62.50
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 1 0 0 100
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 1 0 0 3.03
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 773 1 0 9.72

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 1 0 0 1.27
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 2 3 0 33.33
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 1 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 3108 4 0 2.88

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 261.10 051 0 0 0

page 80



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 3 0 0 17.65
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 336 0 0 8.33

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 2 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 014 2 0 0

page 81



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 2 0 0 20
Resident Bay 118.10 22 13 2 0 59.09
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1568 2 0 22.73

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 1 0 0 1.37
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 0 7 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 2 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 12 1 0 63.16
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 3 0 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 1 0 0 3.85

TOTALS: 424.40 14172 13 0 8.81

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 82



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 1 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 2 0 0 20
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 4 6 0 28.57
Resident Bay 73.70 14 8 0 0 57.14
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 2 0 0 15.38
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 19251 7 0 7.79

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 2 0 0 8
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 3 0 0 15.79
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 565 0 0 7.69

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 83



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 3 5 0 14.29
Resident Bay 80 15 5 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 845 5 0 20

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 73.50 14 11 0 0 78.57
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 1 0 0 5
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1256 0 0 21.43

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 3 0 0 6.12
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 10 0 0 55.56
Resident Bay 60.30 11 5 0 0 45.45
Shared Use Bay 86 16 8 2 0 50
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 26116 2 0 22.81

page 84



Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 28.80 24 0 0 50

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 23.60 4 2 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 104 19 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 2132 0 0 1.52

Weekday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 217 0 0 11.76

page 85



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 2 0 0 11.76
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 11 0 0 100
Resident Bay 43.70 8 6 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 1 0 0 100
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 8 1 0 24.24
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 1 0 0 33.33

TOTALS: 347.20 2973 1 0 40.28

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 25 0 0 31.65
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 3 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 28108 0 0 25.93

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay 17.60 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 261.10 351 0 0 5.88

page 86



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 1 0 0 100
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 136 0 0 2.78

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 2 0 0 13.33

TOTALS: 104.90 219 0 0 10.53

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 2 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 014 2 0 0

page 87



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 4 0 0 12.90
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 9 0 0 90
Resident Bay 118.10 22 15 2 0 68.18
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 2868 2 0 42.42

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 16 0 0 21.92
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 8 7 0 23.53
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 2 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 12 1 0 63.16
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 1 3 0 16.67
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 5 0 0 19.23

TOTALS: 424.40 42172 13 0 26.42

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 88



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 12 0 0 13.33
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 1 0 0 16.67
Double Yellow 499.40 77 1 0 0 1.30
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 10 6 0 100
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 0 0 85.71
Resident Bay 73.70 14 6 0 0 42.86
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 5 0 0 38.46
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 1 0 0 6.67

TOTALS: 1,042.70 52251 6 0 21.22

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 14 0 0 56
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 5 0 0 26.32
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 2065 0 0 30.77

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 89



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 8 5 0 38.10
Resident Bay 80 15 8 0 0 53.33
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1745 5 0 42.50

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 73.50 14 9 0 0 64.29
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 3 0 0 15
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 1 0 0 20

TOTALS: 306.70 1656 0 0 28.57

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 10 0 0 55.56
Resident Bay 60.30 11 8 0 0 72.73
Shared Use Bay 86 16 12 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 1 0 0 10
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 1 0 0 50
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 32116 0 0 27.59

page 90



Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 10 0 0 12.50
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 5 0 0 62.50
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 9 0 0 90
Resident Bay 23.60 4 2 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 104 19 1 0 0 5.26
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 2 0 0 40
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 29132 0 0 21.97

Weekday 07:30 - 09:30Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 1 0 0 33.33
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 10.70 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 517 0 0 29.41

page 91



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 3 0 0 17.65
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 10 0 0 90.91
Resident Bay 43.70 8 8 1 0 100
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 10 0 0 30.30
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 3173 1 0 43.06

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 27 0 0 34.18
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 3 1 0 50
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 31108 1 0 28.97

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 261.10 351 0 0 5.88

page 92



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 036 0 0 0

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 2 0 0 13.33

TOTALS: 104.90 219 0 0 10.53

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 1 0 0 50

TOTALS: 81.10 214 0 0 14.29

page 93



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 1 0 0 3.23
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 10 0 0 100
Resident Bay 118.10 22 15 2 0 68.18
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 2668 2 0 39.39

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 13 0 0 17.81
Double Yellow 63 11 1 0 0 9.09
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 12 7 0 35.29
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 2 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 15 1 0 78.95
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 3 0 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 3 0 0 11.54

TOTALS: 424.40 44172 13 0 27.67

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 94



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 26 0 0 28.89
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 3 0 0 50
Double Yellow 499.40 77 2 0 0 2.60
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 12 6 0 120
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 8 0 85.71
Resident Bay 73.70 14 8 5 0 57.14
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 6 0 0 46.15
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 1 0 0 6.67

TOTALS: 1,042.70 75251 19 0 32.33

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 2 0 0 50
Double Yellow 89.20 12 2 0 0 16.67
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 25 0 0 100
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 17 0 0 89.47
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 2 0 0 40
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 4865 0 0 73.85

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 95



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 8 5 0 38.10
Resident Bay 80 15 9 0 0 60
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1945 5 0 47.50

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 1 0 0 10
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 73.50 14 13 0 0 92.86
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 2 0 0 10
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 2 0 0 40

TOTALS: 306.70 2156 0 0 37.50

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 6 0 0 12.24
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 18 0 0 100
Resident Bay 60.30 11 6 0 0 54.55
Shared Use Bay 86 16 14 2 0 87.50
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 2 0 0 20
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 46116 2 0 40.35

page 96



Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 15 0 0 18.75
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 8 0 0 100
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 10 0 0 100
Resident Bay 23.60 4 3 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 104 19 1 0 0 5.26
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 2 0 0 40
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 39132 0 0 29.55

Weekday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 1 0 0 100
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 617 0 0 35.29

page 97



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 4 0 0 23.53
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 2 0 0 18.18
Resident Bay 43.70 8 6 0 1 75
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 1 0 0 100
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 6 0 0 18.18
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 347.20 2173 0 1 28.77

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 23 0 0 29.11
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 3 0 3 50
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 1 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 27108 0 4 25

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 261.10 251 0 0 3.92

page 98



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 2 0 0 11.76
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 1 0 0 100
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 336 0 0 8.33

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 1 0 2 33.33
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 114 0 2 7.14

page 99



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 7 0 0 70
Resident Bay 118.10 22 12 0 2 54.55
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1968 0 2 27.94

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 1 0 0 1.37
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 5 0 7 14.71
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 0 2 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 15 0 1 78.95
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 1 0 3 16.67
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 1 0 0 3.85

TOTALS: 424.40 23172 0 13 13.37

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 100



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 1 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 6 0 0 6.67
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 2 0 0 33.33
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 3 0 0 30
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 12 0 6 85.71
Resident Bay 73.70 14 7 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 5 0 0 38.46
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 38251 0 7 15.14

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 1 0 0 25
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 9 0 0 36
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 9 0 0 47.37
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1965 0 0 29.23

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 101



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 11 0 5 52.38
Resident Bay 80 15 9 0 0 60
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 2245 0 5 48.89

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 73.50 14 5 0 0 35.71
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 1 0 0 5
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 956 0 0 16.07

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 4 0 0 8.16
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 15 0 0 83.33
Resident Bay 60.30 11 4 0 0 36.36
Shared Use Bay 86 16 11 0 2 68.75
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 2 0 0 20
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 36116 0 2 31.03

page 102



Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 8 0 0 100
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 9 0 0 90
Resident Bay 23.60 4 3 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 104 19 4 0 0 21.05
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 24132 0 0 18.18

Weekday 19:00 - 23:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 2 0 0 66.67
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 1 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 10.70 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 417 0 0 23.53

page 103



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 43.70 8 6 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 1 0 1 3.03
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 1 0 0 33.33

TOTALS: 347.20 873 0 1 10.96

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 4 0 0 66.67
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 2 0 0 40
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 6108 0 0 5.56

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 261.10 051 0 0 0

page 104



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 036 0 0 0

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 1 0 0 6.67

TOTALS: 104.90 119 0 0 5.26

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 1 0 2 33.33
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 4 0 0 44.44
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 514 0 2 35.71

page 105



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 4 0 0 40
Resident Bay 118.10 22 12 0 2 54.55
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1668 0 2 23.53

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 4 0 7 11.76
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 0 2 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 11 0 1 57.89
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 0 3 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 2 0 0 7.69

TOTALS: 424.40 17172 0 13 9.88

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 106



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 1 0 0 50
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 1 0 0 16.67
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 6 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 3 0 0 21.43
Resident Bay 73.70 14 7 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 13251 0 6 5.18

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 5 0 0 20
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 6 0 0 31.58
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1165 0 0 16.92

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 107



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 6 0 5 28.57
Resident Bay 80 15 7 0 0 46.67
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 1 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1645 0 5 35.56

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 10 0 0 71.43
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 1 0 0 5
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1356 0 0 23.21

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 2 0 0 11.11
Resident Bay 60.30 11 8 0 0 72.73
Shared Use Bay 86 16 4 0 0 25
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 3 0 0 30
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 2 0 0 100
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 19116 0 0 16.38

page 108



Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 28.80 24 0 0 50

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 1 0 0 12.50
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 1 0 0 10
Resident Bay 23.60 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 104 19 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 2132 0 0 1.52

Saturday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 417 0 0 23.53

page 109



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 1 0 0 5.88
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 6 0 0 54.55
Resident Bay 43.70 8 6 0 1 75
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 1 0 0 3.03
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 1473 0 1 19.18

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 2 0 0 2.53
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 2 0 1 33.33
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 4108 0 1 3.70

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 1 0 0 33.33

TOTALS: 261.10 151 0 0 1.96

page 110



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 036 0 0 0

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 1 0 0 6.67

TOTALS: 104.90 119 0 0 5.26

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 014 0 0 0

page 111



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 8 0 0 80
Resident Bay 118.10 22 15 0 2 68.18
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 2368 0 2 33.82

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 0 0 7 0
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 1 0 2 33.33
Resident Bay 113.20 19 14 0 1 73.68
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 0 3 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 424.40 15172 0 13 8.72

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 3 0 0 5.26

TOTALS: 289.50 357 0 0 5.26

page 112



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 1 0 0 50
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 4 0 0 66.67
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 6 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 7 0 8 50
Resident Bay 73.70 14 4 0 5 28.57
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 3 0 0 23.08
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 23251 0 19 9.16

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 1 0 0 25
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 9 0 0 36
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 6 0 0 31.58
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1665 0 0 24.62

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 113



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 4 0 5 19.05
Resident Bay 80 15 4 0 0 26.67
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 945 0 5 20

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 11 0 0 78.57
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1356 0 0 23.21

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 1 0 0 2.04
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 16 0 0 88.89
Resident Bay 60.30 11 7 0 0 63.64
Shared Use Bay 86 16 13 0 2 81.25
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 1 0 0 10
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 38116 0 2 32.76

page 114



Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 1 0 0 12.50
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 9 0 0 90
Resident Bay 23.60 4 3 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 104 19 1 0 0 5.26
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 15132 0 0 11.36

Saturday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 10.70 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 417 0 0 23.53

page 115



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 3 0 0 17.65
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 5 0 0 45.45
Resident Bay 43.70 8 4 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 2 0 0 6.06
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 1473 0 0 19.18

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 1 0 0 25
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 10 0 0 12.66
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 3 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 14108 0 0 12.96

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 261.10 051 0 0 0

page 116



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 2 0 0 200
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 236 0 0 5.56

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 014 0 0 0

page 117



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 3 0 0 9.68
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 7 0 0 70
Resident Bay 118.10 22 17 0 0 77.27
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 2768 0 0 39.71

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 2 0 0 5.88
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 1 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 113.20 19 8 0 0 42.11
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 3 0 0 50
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 3 0 0 11.54

TOTALS: 424.40 17172 0 0 9.88

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 118



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 6 0 0 100
Double Yellow 499.40 77 2 0 0 2.60
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 8 0 0 57.14
Resident Bay 73.70 14 6 0 0 42.86
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 2 0 0 15.38
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 29251 0 0 11.55

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 1 0 0 25
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 6 0 0 24
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 5 0 0 26.32
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1265 0 0 18.46

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 119



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 4 0 0 19.05
Resident Bay 80 15 7 0 0 46.67
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1245 0 0 26.67

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 12 0 0 85.71
Single Yellow 1 23 4 2 0 0 50
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 6 0 0 30
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 2256 0 0 39.29

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 3 0 0 6.12
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 17 0 0 94.44
Resident Bay 60.30 11 9 0 0 81.82
Shared Use Bay 86 16 12 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 8 0 0 80
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 49116 0 0 42.24

page 120



Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 2 0 0 25
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 9 0 0 90
Resident Bay 23.60 4 3 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 104 19 1 0 0 5.26
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 15132 0 0 11.36

Saturday 19:00 - 00:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 3 0 0 100
Resident Bay 10.70 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 417 0 0 23.53

page 121



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 43.70 8 6 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 673 0 0 8.22

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 3 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 4108 0 0 3.70

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 1 0 0 50
Resident Bay 17.60 3 1 0 0 33.33

TOTALS: 261.10 251 0 0 3.92

page 122



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 036 0 0 0

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 4 0 0 44.44
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 414 0 0 28.57

page 123



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 3 0 0 30
Resident Bay 118.10 22 14 0 0 63.64
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1768 0 0 25

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 3 0 0 8.82
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 8 0 0 42.11
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 424.40 11172 0 0 6.40

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 124



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 73.70 14 5 0 0 35.71
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 5251 0 0 1.99

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 2 0 0 8
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 2 0 0 10.53
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 465 0 0 6.15

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 125



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 8 0 0 38.10
Resident Bay 80 15 7 0 0 46.67
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 1 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1745 0 0 37.78

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 9 0 0 64.29
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 2 0 0 10
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1356 0 0 23.21

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 4 0 0 22.22
Resident Bay 60.30 11 5 0 0 45.45
Shared Use Bay 86 16 4 0 0 25
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 2 0 0 20
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 1 0 0 50
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 16116 0 0 13.79

page 126



Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 28.80 24 0 0 50

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 5 0 0 50
Resident Bay 23.60 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 104 19 1 0 0 5.26
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 6132 0 0 4.55

Sunday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 1 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 317 0 0 17.65

page 127



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 4 0 0 36.36
Resident Bay 43.70 8 2 0 0 25
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 3 0 0 9.09
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 973 0 0 12.33

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 1 0 0 16.67
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 1108 0 0 0.93

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 2 0 0 66.67

TOTALS: 261.10 251 0 0 3.92

page 128



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 4 0 0 23.53
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 1 0 0 100
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 536 0 0 13.89

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 3 0 0 20

TOTALS: 104.90 319 0 0 15.79

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 1 0 0 11.11
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 114 0 0 7.14

page 129



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 8 0 0 80
Resident Bay 118.10 22 9 0 0 40.91
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1768 0 0 25

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 2 0 0 5.88
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 1 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 113.20 19 8 0 0 42.11
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 424.40 11172 0 0 6.40

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 130



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 1 0 0 16.67
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 3 0 0 100
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 6 0 0 42.86
Resident Bay 73.70 14 4 0 0 28.57
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 6 0 0 46.15
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 21251 0 0 8.37

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 1 0 0 25
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 7 0 0 28
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 5 0 0 26.32
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1465 0 0 21.54

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 131



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 7 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 80 15 7 0 0 46.67
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1445 0 0 31.11

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 8 0 0 57.14
Single Yellow 1 23 4 2 0 0 50
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 1 0 0 5
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1356 0 0 23.21

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 11 0 0 61.11
Resident Bay 60.30 11 4 0 0 36.36
Shared Use Bay 86 16 11 0 0 68.75
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 1 0 0 10
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 27116 0 0 23.28

page 132



Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 4 0 0 50
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 10 0 0 100
Resident Bay 23.60 4 1 0 0 25
Single Yellow 1 104 19 3 0 0 15.79
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 18132 0 0 13.64

Sunday 11:00 - 15:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 1 0 0 33.33
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 317 0 0 17.65

page 133



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 3 0 0 27.27
Resident Bay 43.70 8 5 1 0 62.50
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 5 0 0 15.15
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 1373 1 0 18.06

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 4 0 0 5.06
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 1 3 0 16.67
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 1 1 0 20
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 3 0 0 60
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 9108 4 0 8.65

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 261.10 351 0 0 5.88

page 134



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 7 0 0 41.18
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 736 0 0 19.44

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 2 2 0 66.67
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 2 0 0 22.22
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 414 2 0 33.33

page 135



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 4 0 0 12.90
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 6 0 0 60
Resident Bay 118.10 22 17 2 0 77.27
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 2768 2 0 40.91

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 63 11 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 2 7 0 5.88
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 2 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 6 1 0 31.58
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 0 3 0 0
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 1 0 0 3.85

TOTALS: 424.40 9172 13 0 5.66

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 136



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 2 1 0 100
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 5 0 0 83.33
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 6 6 0 42.86
Resident Bay 73.70 14 7 0 0 50
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 9 0 0 69.23
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 31251 7 0 12.70

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 1 0 0 25
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 9 0 0 36
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 3 0 0 15.79
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 1465 0 0 21.54

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 137



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 6 5 0 28.57
Resident Bay 80 15 9 0 0 60
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 1 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 1645 5 0 40

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 2 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 73.50 14 12 0 0 85.71
Single Yellow 1 23 4 2 0 0 50
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 5 0 0 25
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 3 0 0 60

TOTALS: 306.70 2456 0 0 42.86

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 2 0 0 4.08
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 12 0 0 66.67
Resident Bay 60.30 11 6 0 0 54.55
Shared Use Bay 86 16 11 2 0 68.75
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 2 0 0 20
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 33116 2 0 28.95

page 138



Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 6 0 0 75
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 10 0 0 100
Resident Bay 23.60 4 3 0 0 75
Single Yellow 1 104 19 10 0 0 52.63
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 4 0 0 80
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 33132 0 0 25

Sunday 18:00 - 20:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 1 0 0 33.33
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 1 0 0 100
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 417 0 0 23.53

page 139



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: ADAM'S ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 92.30 17 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 9.30 11 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 43.70 8 4 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 5.10 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 177.50 33 4 1 0 12.12
Taxi Bay 19.30 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 347.20 873 1 0 11.11

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BERKELEY SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 2.40 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 28.40 4 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 63.30 79 3 0 0 3.80
Pay by Phone Bay 37.80 6 1 0 0 16.67
Single Yellow 1 27.10 5 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 27.10 5 1 0 0 20
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 49.80 9 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 235.90 5108 0 0 4.63

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: BOURDON STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 232.50 46 0 0 0 0
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 11 2 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.60 3 1 0 0 33.33

TOTALS: 261.10 151 0 0 1.96

page 140



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARLOS PLACE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 96.30 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 86.20 17 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 7 1 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 9.60 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 4.50 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 203.60 036 0 0 0

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CARPENTER STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 21.30 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 83.60 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 104.90 019 0 0 0

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: CHESTERFIELD HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 9.30 0 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 16.70 3 0 2 0 0
Single Yellow 1 44.90 9 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 10.20 2 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 81.10 014 2 0 0

page 141



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: DAVIES STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 187.50 31 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 57.10 10 1 0 0 10
Resident Bay 118.10 22 12 2 0 54.55
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 45.70 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 408.40 1368 2 0 19.70

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: FARM STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 18.30 73 7 0 0 9.59
Double Yellow 63 11 1 0 0 9.09
Motorcycle Bay 28.10 34 3 7 0 8.82
Pay by Phone Bay 10.90 3 0 2 0 0
Resident Bay 113.20 19 12 1 0 63.16
Single Yellow 1 40.30 6 1 3 0 16.67
Single Yellow 2 150.60 26 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 424.40 24172 13 0 15.09

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR HILL

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 289.50 57 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 289.50 057 0 0 0

page 142



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR SQUARE

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 9.90 2 0 0 0 0
Car Club Bays 10.60 2 0 0 0 0
Cycle Hire Scheme 22.60 90 0 0 0 0
Diplomat Bay 17.70 3 1 0 0 33.33
Disabled Bay (Blue Ba... 37.20 6 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 499.40 77 0 0 0 0
Electric Charging Bay 18.40 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 8.50 10 0 6 0 0
Pay by Phone & P&D 86.10 14 2 0 0 14.29
Resident Bay 73.70 14 4 0 0 28.57
Resident Bay EV 11.40 2 1 0 0 50
Single Yellow 1 81.20 13 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 166 15 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 1,042.70 8251 6 0 3.27

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: GROSVENOR STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Diplomat Bay 22.70 4 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 89.20 12 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 142.20 25 3 0 0 12
Shared Use Bay 96.90 19 6 0 0 31.58
Single Yellow 1 29.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 22.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 403.10 965 0 0 13.85

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HAY'S MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 5 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 5 00 0 0 0

page 143



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: HILL STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 43 6 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 125.30 21 2 5 0 9.52
Resident Bay 80 15 5 0 0 33.33
Single Yellow 1 20.40 3 2 0 0 66.67
Single Yellow 2 3.40 0 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 272.10 945 5 0 22.50

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT ROW

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 57.90 10 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 15.10 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 73.50 14 10 0 0 71.43
Single Yellow 1 23 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 112.40 20 0 0 0 0
Taxi Bay 24.80 5 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306.70 1056 0 0 17.86

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: MOUNT STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 6.10 0 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 279.60 49 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 106.80 18 2 0 0 11.11
Resident Bay 60.30 11 2 0 0 18.18
Shared Use Bay 86 16 5 0 0 31.25
Single Yellow 1 56.30 10 1 0 0 10
Single Yellow 2 17.20 2 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 57.20 10 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 669.50 10116 0 0 8.62

page 144



Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: REEVES MEWS

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Double Yellow 11.30 1 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 17.50 3 3 0 0 100

TOTALS: 28.80 34 0 0 75

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH AUDLEY STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

Cycle Hire Scheme 20.20 80 2 0 0 2.50
Double Yellow 32.80 3 0 0 0 0
Motorcycle Bay 7.10 8 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 58.40 10 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 23.60 4 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 1 104 19 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 33.70 5 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 26.20 3 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 306 2132 0 0 1.52

Monday 00:00 - 06:00Street: SOUTH STREET

Restriction Types Length Bays Parked Suspended Alfresco Parked
Vehicle

Occupancy
(%)

All Other Bays 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Double Yellow 17.50 3 0 0 0 0
Pay by Phone Bay 16.50 3 0 0 0 0
Resident Bay 10.70 2 2 0 0 100
Resident Bay EV 7 1 0 0 0 0
Single Yellow 2 6.70 1 0 0 0 0
Zig Zags / Pedestrian... 21.60 4 0 0 0 0

TOTALS: 97.50 217 0 0 11.76

page 145



Appendix B
PTAL Calculation

page 146



WebCAT PTAL Report

==============================

Site Details

------------

Grid Cell: 81297

Eas琀椀ng: 528545

Northing: 180652

Report Date: 17/10/2023

Scenario: Base Year

Calcula琀椀on Parameters

----------------------

Day of Week: M-F

Time Period: AM Peak

Walk Speed: 4.8 kph

Bus Node Max Walk Access Time (mins): 8

Bus Reliability Factor: 2.0

page 147



LU Sta琀椀on Max Walk Access Time (mins): 12

LU Reliability Factor: 0.75

Na琀椀onal Rail Sta琀椀on Max Walk Access Time (mins): 12

Na琀椀onal Rail Reliability Factor: 0.75

Mode Stop Route Distance (metres) Frequency (vph) Walk Time (mins) SWT (mins) TAT (mins) EDF Weight AI

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 16 538.01 9 6.73 5.33 12.06 2.49 0.5 1.24

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 10 538.01 4.5 6.73 8.67 15.39 1.95 0.5 0.97

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 82 538.01 8.75 6.73 5.43 12.15 2.47 0.5 1.23

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 137 538.01 11 6.73 4.73 11.45 2.62 0.5 1.31

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 73 538.01 18 6.73 3.67 10.39 2.89 0.5 1.44

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 2 538.01 9 6.73 5.33 12.06 2.49 0.5 1.24

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 74 538.01 7.5 6.73 6 12.73 2.36 0.5 1.18

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 148 538.01 8 6.73 5.75 12.48 2.4 0.5 1.2

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 36 538.01 10 6.73 5 11.73 2.56 0.5 1.28

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 436 538.01 10 6.73 5 11.73 2.56 0.5 1.28

Bus PARK LANE GROSVENOR HSE 414 538.01 7.5 6.73 6 12.73 2.36 0.5 1.18

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 98 567.56 9 7.09 5.33 12.43 2.41 0.5 1.21

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 23 567.56 8 7.09 5.75 12.84 2.34 0.5 1.17

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 94 567.56 13 7.09 4.31 11.4 2.63 0.5 1.32

page 148



Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 7 567.56 8 7.09 5.75 12.84 2.34 0.5 1.17

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 390 567.56 8 7.09 5.75 12.84 2.34 0.5 1.17

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 159 567.56 12 7.09 4.5 11.59 2.59 0.5 1.29

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 189 567.56 7.5 7.09 6 13.09 2.29 0.5 1.15

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 13 567.56 8 7.09 5.75 12.84 2.34 0.5 1.17

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 139 567.56 7.5 7.09 6 13.09 2.29 0.5 1.15

Bus OXFORD STREET SELFRIDGES 6 567.56 10 7.09 5 12.09 2.48 0.5 1.24

Bus BERKELEY SQUARE C2 255.32 8 3.19 5.75 8.94 3.36 1 3.36

LUL Green Park 'Cockfosters-LHRT4LT ' 743.37 4.67 9.29 7.17 16.47 1.82 0.5 0.91

LUL Green Park 'RayLane-Cockfosters ' 743.37 3.67 9.29 8.92 18.22 1.65 0.5 0.82

LUL Green Park 'LHRT4LT-ArnosGrove  ' 743.37 4.67 9.29 7.17 16.47 1.82 0.5 0.91

LUL Green Park 'ArnosGrove-RayLane  ' 743.37 0.33 9.29 91.66 100.95 0.3 0.5 0.15

LUL Green Park 'ArnosGrove-Nth昀椀elds' 743.37 3 9.29 10.75 20.04 1.5 0.5 0.75

LUL Green Park 'Oakwood-RayLane     ' 743.37 0.33 9.29 91.66 100.95 0.3 0.5 0.15

LUL Green Park 'Nth昀椀elds-Cockfoster' 743.37 1 9.29 30.75 40.04 0.75 0.5 0.37

LUL Green Park 'LHRT5-Cockfosters   ' 743.37 6 9.29 5.75 15.04 1.99 0.5 1

LUL Green Park 'Uxbridge-Cockfosters' 743.37 3.67 9.29 8.92 18.22 1.65 0.5 0.82

LUL Green Park 'Ruislip-Cockfosters ' 743.37 2.33 9.29 13.63 22.92 1.31 0.5 0.65

LUL Green Park 'ArnosGrove-Uxbridge ' 743.37 1 9.29 30.75 40.04 0.75 0.5 0.37

LUL Green Park 'Oakwood-Uxbridge    ' 743.37 0.33 9.29 91.66 100.95 0.3 0.5 0.15

page 149



LUL Green Park 'Oakwood-Ruislip     ' 743.37 0.33 9.29 91.66 100.95 0.3 0.5 0.15

LUL Green Park 'Brixton-WalthamstowC' 743.37 15.67 9.29 2.66 11.96 2.51 0.5 1.25

LUL Green Park 'SevenSisters-Brixton' 743.37 11.67 9.29 3.32 12.61 2.38 0.5 1.19

LUL Bond Street 'Epping-Ealing       ' 432.4 3 5.41 10.75 16.16 1.86 0.5 0.93

LUL Bond Street 'WRuislip-Epping     ' 432.4 3 5.41 10.75 16.16 1.86 0.5 0.93

LUL Bond Street 'RuislipGar-Epping   ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'WhiteCity-Epping    ' 432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'Epping-NActon       ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'Northolt-Epping     ' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'Debden-WRuislip     ' 432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'WhiteCity-Debden    ' 432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'Debden-Northolt     ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'RuislipGdns-Debden  ' 432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'Loughton-WRuislip   ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'NActon-Loughton     ' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'RuislipGdns-Loughton' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'Loughton-WhiteCity  ' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'Loughton-Northolt   ' 432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'Ealing-Loughton     ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'Ealing-NewburyPark  ' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

page 150



LUL Bond Street 'WRuislip-NewburyPark'432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'NActon-NewburyPark  '432.4 0.33 5.41 91.66 97.06 0.31 0.5 0.15

LUL Bond Street 'Hainault-Ealing     ' 432.4 5.33 5.41 6.38 11.78 2.55 0.5 1.27

LUL Bond Street 'Hainault-Nacton     ' 432.4 1.33 5.41 23.31 28.71 1.04 0.5 0.52

LUL Bond Street 'Hainault-WRuislip   ' 432.4 3.33 5.41 9.76 15.16 1.98 0.5 0.99

LUL Bond Street 'Hain-NP-RuislipGdns ' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'Hainault-WhiteCity  ' 432.4 1.67 5.41 18.71 24.12 1.24 0.5 0.62

LUL Bond Street 'Hainault-NP-Northolt' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'GrangeHill-WD-Eal   ' 432.4 1 5.41 30.75 36.16 0.83 0.5 0.41

LUL Bond Street 'GrangeHill-Wdfd-Whit' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'GrangeHill-Wdfd-WRsp' 432.4 0.67 5.41 45.53 50.93 0.59 0.5 0.29

LUL Bond Street 'Stra琀昀ord-WembleyPa ' 432.4 3.67 5.41 8.92 14.33 2.09 0.5 1.05

LUL Bond Street 'Stra琀昀ord-Willesden ' 432.4 4.33 5.41 7.68 13.08 2.29 0.5 1.15

LUL Bond Street 'Stanmore-Stra琀昀ord  ' 432.4 17.65 5.41 2.45 7.85 3.82 1 3.82

Total Grid Cell AI: 56.1

PTAL: 6b

page 151



Appendix C
Layout Plans

page 152



page 153



page 154



page 155



page 156



page 157



page 158



Appendix D
Occupancy Data

page 159



page 160



 

 

page 161



 

 

page 162



 

 
 
 

page 163



 

page 164



 

page 165



 

page 166



        
  

Trading name of business and Address: 8 Carlos Place, London W1K 3AW 

Reference Number if Applicable: 23/01528/PREAPM 

Licence:  None 

 

Applicant/solicitor: Alun 
Thomas, Thomas & Thomas 

Cumulative Impact Zone: No 

Proposed Type of Business: Restaurant with ancillary bar. 

Proposed Licensed Areas: Basement to Fourth Floor 

Proposed Activities: Supply of Alcohol & Late-Night Refreshment. 

Pre application advice purpose:  To assess a new proposal to provide a fine dining restaurant with 
opening hours up to 01.30 hours. 

Background to application:  The proposed operator has recently purchased this empty office 
building and will be converting the ground and upper floors into a fine dining restaurant with private 
dining rooms. Access would be direct of Carlos Place with a grand staircase giving access to the 
upper floors. They are seeking technical and licensing advice with regard to the suitability of the 
proposals and maximum capacities for the building which is a listed building. 

Issues discussed and actions taken. 

Inspection carried out by Alan Lynagh (District Surveyor Licensing - DS) and Ian Watson (Senior 
Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing). Proposed layout fully assessed and findings from 
inspection detailed below. 
 
District Surveyors Comments 
 
Building Regulations 
 
It is assumed that the works proposed would trigger a building control application also we would 
expect the relevant commissioning of systems and approval under this legislation to be in place as 
required. 
 
Means of Escape 
 
The premises proposed plans show a main entrance/exit at ground floor level and a front main 
staircase providing access between the ground and first floor. There is a central staircase providing 

Office Name: Ian Watson 
Designation: Senior Practitioner EH 
Licensing 
Date: 24th April 2023 
Contact number: 
Email:  iwatson@westminster.gov.uk 
Signed: Ian Watson 
Uniform Ref Number: 23/01528/PREAPM 

page 167



page 168



 

 

 

 

 

Additional General Fire/Public Safety Considerations 
 

• All fire doors protecting exit routes should be confirmed as suitably fire rated doors provided 
with intumescent strips and smoke seals, three hinges and self-closing devices and generally 
comply with the relevant provisions of Table B1 of Approved Document B. 

• Suitable primary and secondary lighting should be provided throughout, and this should 
include all changes of level and key staff areas such as fire alarm panel location.  This should 
also include the external terrace area at first floor level.  We would expect the system to be in 
line with BS 5266. 

• The guarding/barriers to the any balconies/staircases will need to be considered and any 
potential risk areas mitigated.  In general barriers should be 1100mm high around any 
potential drop and balustrades or gaps between the edges of barriers and pillars/staircases or 
similar elements should not allow a sphere of 100mm to pass through.   

• Contrasting nosing’s should be provided to all exit staircases. 
• Every escape route (other than those in ordinary use) should be marked by emergency exit 

signs complying with BS 5499: Part 1 and these will be located in accordance with the 
recommendations of BS 5499: Part 4. 

• A cause and effect for the fire alarm system should be provided for consideration and this 
should include suitable cut offs of the music and other entertainment systems in use at the 
premises. 

• It is recommended that following the refurbishment works a suitable ceiling 
inspection/certificate is in place for any relevant suspended plaster ceilings within the 
premises if applicable. 

• Lighting to all public areas should be under management control and not accessible by the 
general public. 

• The emergency exit signage should be maintained (on all the time) given the lighting levels 
may be dimmed.  

• Lighting fittings should be fixed at least 2100mm above floor level or pitch line of stairs. 
Suspended fittings, other than small lamp pendants, should be provided with suitable means 
of suspension independent of the electric cable. Heavy fittings should be rigidly fixed or be 
provided with two non-combustible independent means of suspension. 

 
Disabled Evacuation 
 
The operator will need to set out a method statement covering the disabled evacuation for the 
premises and the use of any evacuation chairs as required for assessment.  It appears that a lift is 

First 
Floor etc 

TBC TBC ÷ 0.3 
= TBC 

TBC ÷ 0.5 = 
TBC 

TBC ÷ 0.45 = 
TBC 

TBC ÷ 
1 = 
TBC 

TBC 

NB: If any of the available floor space is reduced then the recommended figures will 
need to be recalculated and this will need to be reflected within this strategy 

page 169



proposed which will provide disabled access to all level but this should be confirmed. 
 
Additional Guidance on Door fastenings 
 
All exit doors should be free from fastenings when public or staff are present or have fastenings that 
may be readily opened in emergency without using both hands or a key to open the door. 
 
Note 1:  This does not preclude the use of a key to open the door from the outside. 
Note 2:  Any removable devices, such as locks, bolts, chains or padlocks, used to improve security 
must be removed before the premises are occupied. A door alarm system is preferable to removable 
security devices where possible.  
 
General points for Consideration 
 
Doors 
 
To clarify the width of a doorway on the means of escape routes is the clear width measured 
between the leaves (or, if a single door, the leaf and the frame or doorstop) of the doors when 
open at right angles to the frame. Door hardware may be ignored if the door opens more than 90 
degrees to the frame. Doorways should be not less than 2060mm high except that the height may 
be reduced to 1960mm in existing buildings. Curtains or drapes should never be hung across 
doors or escape routes within any of the licensable areas as this could impede any evacuation. 
 
Double Swing Doors and Doors Across Corridors 
 
Double swing doors, doors across corridors and doors that may cause an obstruction should be fitted 
with safety glass vision panels with zones of visibility between 500mm and 1500mm from the floor. 
Fire resisting safety glass panels should be fitted in fire doors to the same level of fire resistance as 
the door itself. 
 
Thresholds 
 
No door should open immediately over or onto a step. A single step on the line of a doorway is not 
acceptable. A landing at least as wide as the door and at least as long as the width of the door plus 
400mm, should be provided between the door and the first step of any stair. 
 
There should be no upstand or threshold bar across any doorway or escape route, other than a 
chamfered weather bar or threshold seal for sound insulation protruding a maximum of 6mm and 
arranged so as not to cause a trip hazard. 
 
Door fastenings 
 
All exit doors should be free from fastenings when public, entertainers or staff are present or have 
fastenings that may be readily opened in emergency without using both hands or a key to open the 
door. 
 

page 170



Note 1:  This does not preclude the use of a key to open the door from the outside. 
Note 2:  Any removable devices, such as locks, bolts, chains or padlocks, used to improve security 
must be removed before the premises are occupied. A door alarm system is preferable to removable 
security devices where possible.   
 
Where there may be more than 60 people, any fastenings on doors should be panic bolts or panic 
latches operated by push bars complying with BS EN 1125. 
 
If a room holds less than 60 people, push pads or lever handles complying with BS EN 179 are 
acceptable. The use of latches operated by lever handles should be avoided in public areas. Round 
knobs should not be used as they could be difficult to operate. 
 
Any door furniture should be fitted between 800mm and 1200mm above floor level and should 
provide visual contrast with the surface of the doors. To avoid confusion push plates should usually 
be fitted for pushing doors and handles to pull doors. 
 
Lighting 
 
The premises should have an adequate supply of both normal and emergency and each system 
should be sufficient to enable the public, performers and staff to see their way to move around the 
premises safely and to escape from the premises.  
 
Adequate emergency lighting in addition to sufficient normal lighting should be provided so that all 
parts of the premises including toilets and internal and external exit routes leading to the street are 
illuminated. All emergency lighting should comply with BS 5266: Parts, 1, 7 & 8.  
 
Both supplies of lighting should be independently capable of providing the recommended minimum 
illuminance. However, whilst both normal and emergency supplies are functioning properly, either or 
both supplies may operate at a reduced level so long as the minimum recommended illuminance is 
provided. In the event of the failure of either supply the remaining supply should be automatically 
restored to full illuminance. 
 
The lighting and emergency lighting circuits should not normally be switched off by the operation of 
any RCD. The lighting should be operated by an automatic switching system or remain on when the 
public are present. Light switches should preferably not be installed in public areas such as the event 
space but if so installed should be key-operated or otherwise protected from unauthorised operation.   
 
Maintained emergency lighting (that is operating whenever the premises are occupied) should be 
installed where the normal lighting may be dimmed. Where non-maintained emergency lighting is 
installed, it should come into operation on the failure of the local normal lighting circuit forming part of 
the normal lighting.   
  
Lighting fittings should be fixed at least 2100mm above floor level or pitch line of stairs. Suspended 
fittings, other than small lamp pendants, should be provided with suitable means of suspension 
independent of the electric cable. Heavy fittings should be rigidly fixed or be provided with two non-
combustible independent means of suspension. 

page 171



 
Communication 
 
Adequate communication is needed throughout the premises. Where noise levels are loud 
communications systems such as a public address system may be needed especially in emergency 
as there are emergencies where the fire system does not suffice. Consideration should be given to 
the type and style of operation proposed and the type of entertainment available as this will help 
inform any decisions made regarding communication systems. In some circumstances a duty 
manager, equipped with two-way communication with designated members of staff is sufficient.    
 
Exit Signage 
 
All exit routes should be suitably signed, with particular attention drawn to the need for signage 
throughout the large ground floor space. 
 
Proposed Hours 
 
Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises. 
Monday to Saturday 10.00 to 01.00 hours 
Sunday 10.00 to 23.30 hours. 
New Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day 
Additional hour for British Summer Time 
 
Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ 
Monday to Saturday 23.00 to 01.00 hours 
Sunday 23.00 to 23.30 hours 
New Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day 
Additional hour for British Summer Time 
 
Public Nuisance and Licensing Policy 
 
The proposed capacities are still subject to final layout plans/evacuation strategies being developed 
and approved but for the purpose of this report maximum capacity will be circa 250 persons, 
excluding staff. 
 
The proposed use of the premises will be restaurant led, therefore using BS 6465-1 2006 Part 1 
Table 10 the toilet requirement would be 5 WC’s female and 2 WC’s 3 urinals male, plus 1 disabled 
WC. Staff facilities will also need to be provided and a minimum of 2 WC’s per sex is recommended 
for up to 60 staff at any one time. 
 
It is advisable to create a refuse store within the premises to enable the safe storage of waste prior to 
collection. The size of the waste store should be adequate to store a minimum of 3 days’ worth of 
refuse. 
 
Due to the hours being applied for the operating style should be such that the licensing objectives are 
addressed by way of condition to minimise the impact on the surrounding commercial/residential 
area. There is no policy presumption against the application as the premises are not in a recognised 
cumulative impact or special consideration zone. 
 
Appropriate conditions would need to be proposed to address Public Safety, Prevention of Public 
Nuisance and Crime and Disorder to satisfy the responsible authorities. 

page 172



 
It is recommended that the applicant addresses Appendix 11 of licensing policy especially in relation 
to people/traffic movement and dispersal at the end of the night including staff. This would need to be 
in the form of an impact assessment supported by a noise report. 
 
Licensing Position 
 
The premises are not located in any recognised cumulative impact areas as identified within 
Westminster’s Licensing Policy therefore conditions need to address the licensing objectives and 
proposed style of operation. 
 
To address the licensing objectives with regard to the Licensing Policy and to minimise public 
concerns the following conditions are proposed. 
 

• Except for the areas hatched black on the approved plans, the premises shall only operate as 
a restaurant: -  

(i) in which customers are shown to their table or the customer will select a table 
themselves, 
(ii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table, 
(iii) which do not provide any takeaway service of food or drink for immediate consumption 
off the premises, 
(iv) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there 
and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking 
such meals. 

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed, and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  

 
• Except in the areas hatched black on the plan, the supply of alcohol shall only be: 

i) by waiter/waitress service to persons seated; or 
ii) to persons either dining or attending a pre-booked and bona fide private function (4th 

floor only). 
 

• Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available 
in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.  

 
• There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption ‘Off’ the premises after 23.00 

hours. 

• There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises after 23.00 hours. 
 

• All sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises shall be only:  
i) in sealed containers; or 
ii) in an area appropriately authorised for the use of tables and chairs on the highway and to 

persons bona fide taking substantial meals there, and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such person is ancillary to taking such meals.  

 
• All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 23:00 hours each day. 

 
 

page 173



 
 

• A challenge 21 or challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards 
such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS hologram.  

 
• No licensable activities shall take place in the first-floor terrace after 22.00 hours and shall be 

cleared of all persons by 22.30 hours. 
 

• Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premise building, 
including the first floor terrace. 

 
• The external door leading onto the first-floor terrace shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours, 

except for the immediate access and egress of persons. 

• Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g., to smoke, shall 
not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 
• No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate 

from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which 
gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
• A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined by 

and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental health Service, so as to 
ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The operational 
panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of 
officers from the Environmental health Services and access shall only be by persons 
authorised by the Premises Licence Holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior 
agreement with the Environmental health Service. No alteration or modification to any existing 
sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised officer of the 
Environmental health Service. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on 
the premises without being routed through the sound limiter device.  

 
• No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licenced premises so as to cause a 

nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where the premises are 
situated.  

 
• The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The 
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 
during all times when customers remain on the premises and will include the external area 
immediately outside the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 
days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately 
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
• A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 

shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff member must be 
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data 
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
• An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

page 174



officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: 
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

• The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 
emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, shall at 
all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

 
• The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip 

hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans 
provided. 

 
• All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 

code, card or similar means. 
 

• All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other than 
by an approved device. 

 
• The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous. 

 
• Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs or 

emergency equipment. 
 

• During the hours of operation, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures are in place 
to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the area 
immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed and litter 
and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage 
arrangements by close of business.  

 
• Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of 

local residents and to leave the area quietly.  
 

• Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to 
respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.  

 
• The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do 

so on an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public 
nuisance or obstruction of the public highway.  

 
• A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at all 

times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to residents and 
businesses in the vicinity. 

 

page 175



• No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed in 
outside areas between 23.00 and 08.00 hours. 

• No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall take 
place between 20.00 and 07.30 hours on the following day.  

• No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23.00 and 07.30 hours. 

• All windows and the external entrance door shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours, except for 
the immediate access and egress of persons. 

• The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late-night 
refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve through to the 
commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day. 

 
• The premises licence holder shall ensure that the management team register and 

successfully complete the nationally recognised counter terrorism training product referred to 
as ACT eLearning package or can demonstrate that the ACT eLearning product has been 
successfully completed within the  preceding 12 months and that all staff employed by or at 
the premises complete the ACT eLearning within a reasonable period not exceeding 3 
months from the day, they start their employment. 

 
• No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises has been assessed 

as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this condition 
shall be removed from the Licence by the licensing authority.  

 
• No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the Environmental Health 

Consultation Team has determined the capacity of the premises and the Licensing Authority 
has replaced this condition on the licence with a condition detailing the capacity so 
determined.  

 
• Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of the 
premises constructed. Where there are minor changes to the premises layout during the 
course of construction new plans shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation 
Team and the Licensing Authority.  

 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The operation of the premises as a fine dining restaurant should not impact on the immediate area 
provided that robust systems are put in place to minimise the impact on the residents and 
commercial premises in the vicinity. 
 
The use of the first floor terrace should be moderate and not be used for later hours where there will 
be potential for disturbance unless suitable noise attenuation measures are put in place. 
 
It is advised that a smoking and dispersal policy are put in place. 
 
A raft of model conditions are proposed that will direct the operation of the premises and address the 
licensing objectives. 

page 176



 
The proposed capacity of the premises should not impact on Public Safety provided the work 
detailed above is carried out in accordance with the relevant provisions. 
 
Works conditions are proposed that give comfort to the responsibly authorities on completion of the 
works. 
 
As part of the application process it is advised that the other responsible authorities will also need to 
assess the proposals and may wish to make additional comments. 
 
Please note that any advice given will not guarantee that your application will be granted by 
the Licensing Service and the Environmental Health Consultation Team may still choose to 
make a representation to the application submitted.  

 

page 177



 

page 178



 

page 179



 

page 180



 

page 181



 

page 182



 

page 183



 

page 184



 

page 185



page 186



 
Premises History         Appendix 3 

 
 

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 187



 

 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 188



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 189



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 

page 190



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9. On the first and second floors, the premises shall only operate as a restaurant:  

(i) in which customers are shown to their table or the customer will select a table 
themselves;  
(ii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table;  
(iii) which do not provide any takeaway service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption off the premises;  
(iv) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals 
there and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary 
to taking such meals.  

 
The applicant has agreed the following amended condition with the Metropolitan 
Police Service 
 
On the first and second floors, the premises shall only operate as a restaurant: 
(i) in which customers are shown to their table or the customer will select a table 
themselves, 
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table,  
(iv) which do not provide any takeaway service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption off the premises,  
(v) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals 
there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary 
to taking such meals. 

 
11.  On the fourth floor, alcohol may only be sold to persons either dining or attending a pre-

booked and bona fide private function.  
 
12.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises.  

 
13.  All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 23:00 hours each day.  
 
14.  A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system and maintained in 

accordance with the following criteria:  
(a) The limiter must be set at a level determined by and to the satisfaction of an 
authorised Environmental Health Officer, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is 
caused to local residents or businesses,  
(b) The operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password 
to the satisfaction of the authorised Environmental Health Officer and access shall only 
be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence Holder,  
(c) The limiter shall not be altered without prior written agreement from the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team,  
(d) No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be affected 
without prior knowledge of the Environmental Health Consultation Team, and  
(e) No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises without 
being routed through the sound limiter device. 
  

15.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 

page 191



condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises and 
will include the external area immediately outside the premises entrance. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the entire 31-day period.  

 
16.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
17.  The premises licence holder shall ensure that the management team register and 

successfully complete the nationally recognised counter terrorism training product 
referred to as ACT eLearning package or can demonstrate that the ACT eLearning 
product has been successfully completed within the preceding 12 months and that all 
staff employed by or at the premises complete the ACT eLearning within a reasonable 
period not exceeding 3 months from the day, they start their employment.  

 
18.  The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late-night 

refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve through to the 
commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day.  

 
19.  All sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises shall be only:  

 a. in sealed containers; or  

b. in an area appropriately authorised for the use of tables and chairs on the highway 
and to persons bona fide taking substantial meals there, and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such person is ancillary to taking such meals.  

 
20.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises after 23.00 hours.  
 
21.  A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the 

only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, 
such as driving licence, passport of proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
22.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g., to smoke, 

shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  
 
23.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received regarding crime disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) any faults in the CCTV system  
(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service  
 

24.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
 
25.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of the local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  
 

page 192



26.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.  

 
27.  No collection of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 

take place between 23:00 and 07:30 hours on the following day.  
 
28.  No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23:00 and 07:30 hours on the 

following day.  
 
29.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.  

 
30.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 

of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided.  

 
31.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 

code, card or similar means.  
 
32.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other 

than by an approved device.  
 
33.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs 

or emergency equipment.  
 
34.  No licensable activities shall take place until the premises have been assessed as 

satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this condition 
shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing Authority.  

 
35.  No licensable activities shall take at the premises until the capacity of the premises has 

been determined by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing 
Authority has replaced this condition on the licence with a condition detailing the 
capacity so determined.  

 
36.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of the 
premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of 
construction new plans shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation 
Team and the Licensing Authority.  

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
None 
 
Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed by the applicant so as to form part of the 
operating schedule  
 
37. A copy of the premises’ dispersal policy shall be made readily available at the premises 

for inspection by a Police Officer and/or an authorised officer of Westminster City 

Council. 

 

page 193



38. In respect of any private or pre-booked functions on the 4th floor, the premises licence 

holder will carry out risk assessments as to whether or not SIA registered supervisors 

shall be required during such events. The premises licence holder shall implement the 

recommendations of such risk assessments and copies of any such risk assessments 

shall be available for inspection by the Police for six months. 

page 194



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                             Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident Count: 90 
 

 
Licensed premises within 75m of 8 Carlos Place, London, W1 

 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

16/03326/LIPD 
Nicky Clarke 
Salons 

Basement 
And Ground 
Floor 11 
Carlos Place 
London W1K 
3AX 

Hairdresser or 
beauty salon 

Monday; 09:00 
- 18:00 | 
Saturday; 08:30 
- 19:00 | 
Tuesday to 
Wednesday; 
08:30 - 19:00 | 
Thursday to 
Friday; 08:30 - 
20:00 

page 195



21/03242/LIPCH Connaught Hotel 

Connaught 
Hotel Carlos 
Place London 
W1K 2AL 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday; 00:00 
- 00:00 | 
Tuesday; 00:00 
- 00:00 | 
Wednesday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Thursday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday; 00:00 - 
00:00 | 
Saturday; 00:00 
- 00:00 | 
Sunday; 00:00 - 
00:00 

21/03252/LIPCH 

Connaught Hotel 
Restaurant And 
Bars 

Restaurant 
Connaught 
Hotel Carlos 
Place London 
W1K 2AL 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
01:30 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:30 

17/00683/LIPRW 8 Mount Street 

8 Mount 
Street London 
W1K 3NF Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

09/09810/LIPN William And Son 

10 Mount 
Street London 
W1K 2TY Shop (large) 

Saturday; 10:00 
- 17:00 | 
Monday to 
Friday; 10:00 - 
18:00 

 

 
 
 
 
 

page 196



            

  

 

City of Westminster 

 

 
Item No:   

 

   

Date:  30 November 2023 

   

Licensing Ref No:  23/05443/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 

   

Title of Report:  Koyn 
38 Grosvenor Street 
London 
W1K 4QU 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  West End 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Ms Jessica Donovan 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: Jdonovan@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 197

Agenda Item 2.



page 198



page 199



page 200



page 201



page 202



page 203



are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 
 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 
1. Casinos: Up to 24 hours a day whilst casino gaming is permitted 
by a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005.  
2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises: 
Monday to Sunday: 9am to 12am 
3. Hotels: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and 
Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am. For the sale of 
alcohol to guests for consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: 
Anytime up to 24 hours.  
4. Off licences: Monday to Saturday: 8am to 11pm. Sunday: 9am to 
10.30pm.  
5. Outdoor Spaces: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday 
and Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues: 
Monday to Thursday: 10am to 11.30pm. Friday and Saturday: 10am 
to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday: 12pm to 12am.  
7. Qualifying Clubs: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 12am.. Friday 
and Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
8. Restaurants: Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and 
Saturday: 9am to 12am. Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays 
immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am.  
9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas: Monday to 
Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm. Friday and Saturday: 9am to 12am. 
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a bank 
holiday: 9am to 12am.  
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted.  
E. For the purposes of this policy, ‘premises uses’ are defined within 
the relevant premises use policies within this statement. 

Policy RNT1 applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol 
and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
 
B. Applications inside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to: 

page 204



1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities are within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of Alcohol 
and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has demonstrated that they will not add to 
cumulative impact within the Cumulative Impact Zone.  
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
 
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as: 
1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or the 
customer will select a table themselves to which food is either 
served to them or they have collected themselves. 
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a table. 
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink 
for immediate consumption, except if provided via an ancillary 
delivery service to customers at their residential or workplace 
address. 
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption of 
alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be 
in a bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such meal. 

 
4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 

page 205



page 206



Applicant Supporting Documents       Appendix 1 
 

 

page 207



 

page 208



 

page 209



 

page 210



 

page 211



 

page 212



 

page 213



 

page 214



Existing premises licence 22/08963/LIPDPS     Appendix 2 
 

 
City of Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 010033647438 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 

 
Premises licence 
number: 
 

 
22/08963/LIPDPS 

 
Original Reference:  
 

 
19/15525/LIPN 

 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Koyn 
38 Grosvenor Street 
London 
W1K 4QU 
 

Telephone Number: Not Supplied 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 00:30  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Sunday: 08:00 to 00:30  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Sunday: 08:00 to 00:30 
 

 

page 215



 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises. 
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder 
of premises licence: 
 
Far East Holdings Ltd 
9 Ritz Parade 
London 
W5 3RA 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
11533092 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name:                      Karthik Chandran  
 
Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address 
details of a designated premises supervisor. 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol: 
                                      
Licence Number: LN/201000051 
Licensing Authority: Broxtowe Borough Council 
 

 
 
Date:   19 January 2023 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Mary Pring on behalf of the Director - Public 
Protection and Licensing. 

page 216



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

page 217



 
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either— 
 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 
to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 

page 218



(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    
alcohol under such a licence; 

 
(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

page 219



 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
9. Alcohol sales for consumption on or off the premises shall not commence before 10:00. 

 
10. Save for the bar area shown on the plan, the supply of alcohol at the premises shall only 

be to a person seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person 
as ancillary to their meal. 

 
11. Except in the bar area, the supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
 
12. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
13. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
14. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
15. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 

 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
16. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
17. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
18. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 

take place between (23.00) and (07.00) on the following day Monday to Saturday and 
before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 

 
19. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 

page 220



20. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 
placed in outside areas between (23.00) and (07.00) on the following day Monday to 
Saturday and before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 

 
21. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between (23.00) and (07.00) on the 

following day Monday to Saturday and before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 
 
22. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 
PASS Hologram. 

 
23. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include 

the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused 
the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an 
authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open. 

 
24. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 

25. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed Ground Floor: 100 and Basement 80. 

 
 
  

page 221



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
None 

page 222



Annex 4 – Plans 
 
 

page 223



page 224



 

 
City of Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 010033647438 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence 
number: 
 

 
22/08963/LIPDPS 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Koyn 
38 Grosvenor Street 
London 
W1K 4QU 
 

Telephone Number: Not Supplied 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 00:30  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Sunday: 08:00 to 00:30  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Sunday:              08:00 to 00:30 
 

 

page 225



 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises. 
 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
Far East Holdings Ltd 
9 Ritz Parade 
London 
W5 3RA 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
11533092 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name:                           Karthik Chandran                                     
 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 
 

 
Date:   19 January 2023 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Mary Pring on behalf of the Director - Public 
Protection and Licensing. 

page 226



Appendix 3 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 
 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

19/15525/LIPN New premises licence 
 
Late Night 
Refreshment 
Monday to Sunday: 
23:00 to 00:30  
 
Sale by Retail of 
Alcohol 
Monday to Sunday: 
08:00 to 00:30  
 
From the end of 
permitted hours on 
New Year’s Eve to the 
start of permitted hours 
on New Year’s Day. 

08.01.2020 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

21/05371/LIPT Transfer application: 
Texture Restaurant Ltd 
to Lodha Developers 
1GSQ Holdings Limited 

17.06.2021 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

22/00379/LIPT Transfer application: 
Lodha Developers 
1GSQ Holdings Limited 
to Far East Holdings 
Ltd 

07.02.2022 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

22/01644/LIPV Variation application: 
To vary the layout of 
the premises 

30.03.2022 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

22/08963/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
designated premises 
supervisor 

07.10.2022 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
There is no appeal or Temporary Event Notice history. 

page 227



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

page 228



or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 

page 229



premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
9. Alcohol sales for consumption on or off the premises shall not commence before 10:00. 

 

page 230



10. Save for the bar area shown on the plan, the supply of alcohol at the premises shall only 
be to a person seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person 
as ancillary to their meal. 

 
11. Except in the bar area, the supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
 
12. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
13. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
14. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
15. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 

 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
16. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
17. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
18. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 

take place between (23.00) and (07.00) on the following day Monday to Saturday and 
before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 

 
19. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
20. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between (23.00) and (07.00) on the following day Monday to 
Saturday and before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 

 
21. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between (23.00) and (07.00) on the 

following day Monday to Saturday and before 07:00 and after 20:00 on a Sunday. 
 

page 231



22. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 
PASS Hologram. 

 
23. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include 

the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused 
the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an 
authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open. 

 
24. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 

25. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed Ground Floor: 100 and Basement 80. 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
None 

page 232



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity    Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident count: 54 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 38 Grosvenor Street, London, W1K 4QU 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

22/08963/LIPDPS Koyn 

38 Grosvenor 
Street 
London W1K 
4QU Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 00:30 

22/11551/LIPV 
Mayfair Post 
Office 

Post Office 
32A 
Grosvenor 
Street 
London W1K 
4PA Shop 

Sunday; 09:00 
- 22:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
07:30 - 23:00 

 
 
 
 
 

page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



            
  
 
 
 
 

Item No:   

   

Date:  30 November 2023 

   

Licensing Ref No:  23/05399/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Petite Cafe London 
102 Great Portland Street 
London 
W1W 6PD 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  West End 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Karyn Abbott 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
Email: kabbott@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 235

Agenda Item 3.



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 15 August 2023 

Applicant: Petite Cafe London Limited 

Premises: Petite Cafe London 

Premises address: 102 Great Portland Street 
London 
W1W 6PD 
 

Ward: 
 

West End 
 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

 Special 
Consideration 
Zone: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

According to the application form, the applicant proposes to 
operate the premises as a restaurant serving breakfast, lunch 
and dinner. 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises previously benefitted from a premises licence 
(20/11994/LIPN), but the licence lapsed due to the Licence 
Holder dissolving in January 2023.  
 
The premises history can be found at Appendix 3 of the report.  

Applicant submissions: The applicant has provided a Noise Assessment Report, 
Kitchen Odour Assessment and a leaflet with the kitchen 
extractor.  
 
These can be found at Appendix 2 of the report.   
 
The applicant has agreed a number of conditions with the 
Metropolitan Police and Environmental Health to form part of 
their operating schedule.  
 
These can be found at Appendix 4 of the report.  

Applicant amendments: On original submission of the application, the applicant applied 
for the following.  
 
Late Night Refreshment  
Monday to Sunday 23:00 to 00:30  
 
Retail Sale of Alcohol  
Monday to Sunday 09:00 to 00:30  
 
Opening Hours  
Monday to Sunday 07:00 to 00:30  
 
The applicant has withdrawn Late Night Refreshment and since 
reduced the hours for Retail Sale of Alcohol which are reflected 
in section 1-B of the report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 236



 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Christmas and New Years Eve 09:00 to 02:00 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 08:00 08:00 

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Christmas and New Years Eve 09:00 to 02:00 

Adult Entertainment:  None 

  
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative:  PC Andy Elliott 
 

Received:  
 

5 September 2023 (Withdrawn 13 September 2023) 

The Metropolitan Police Service object to this new premises licencing application, sought under 
the Licencing Act 2003, as it may not promote the Licencing Objectives contained within the 
Act, namely the prevention of Crime & Disorder and Public Safety. 
 
The Metropolitan Police Service object to this application for the following reasons namely that 
this application is outside of Core Hours, although outside of the Cumulative Impact Area there 
is residential accommodation in the proximity of the premises that would likely be adversely 
affected by premises being open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed.  Equally I 
have concerns over 'Sale by retail of Alcohol on site and off site via Takeaway and delivery 
service' as GREAT PORTLAND STREET which is One narrows significantly with the junction of 
GILDA STREET with part of the building line of the premises being within the zig zag limits of a 
pedestrian crossing which would provide a challenging and unsafe environment for mopeds to 
muster as invariably they would directly outside the premises. 
 
The Metropolitan Police have withdrawn their representation on the 13th September 2023 
due to the applicant agreeing a number of conditions and the reducing their hours. This 
condition can be found at Appendix 4.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 237



Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Ayesha Bolton 
 

Received: 
 

13 September 2023 

I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above premises. 

The applicant has submitted floor plans of the Ground Floor and Basement of the premises. 
This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

The applicant is seeking the following: 

1. To provide Late Night Refreshment both Indoors and Outdoors from the premises 
Monday to Sunday from 23.00 to 00.30 hours. Christmas Day and New Year Eve from 
23:00 to 02.00 hours. 

2. To provide Supply of Alcohol both On and Off the premises Monday to Sunday from 
09.00 to 00.30 hours. Christmas Day and New Year Eve from 09:00 to 02.00 hours. 
 

I wish to make the following representation: 

1. The provision and the hours requested for Late Night Refreshment will the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area and may impact on Public 
Safety. 

2. The provision and the hours requested for Supply of Alcohol will the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area and may impact on Public 
Safety. 

 
The granting of the application as presented would have the likely effect of causing an increase 
in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public Safety within the area. 

The applicant has provided additional information within the application which is being 
assessed. Additional conditions will be proposed by Environmental Health to address the 
licensing objectives. 

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 238



 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
  

 

Received:  
 

13 September 2023 (Withdrawn 21 November 2023) 

 
 

page 239



 

page 240



 

page 241



 
 

page 242



 

page 243



 
 

page 244



 

page 245



 
 

page 246



 

page 247



 

page 248



 
 

page 249



 

page 250



 

page 251



 
The Interested Party has withdrawn their representation on the 21st November 2023 due 
to amended conditions agreed with the Police, Environmental Health and the Applicant.  
 

 Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
  

Received:  
 

19 August 2023 

As a resident living nearby, I strongly object to the late night refreshments and the sale of 
alcohol beyond 11pm. The sound from these premises echoes around at the back of these 
properties, and in addition there are many families with young children in the surrounding 
blocks. 
We are in full support of vacant premises beginning new businesses, but sale of alcohol past 
11pm would be out of keeping with this residential area. I urge you to reconsider . 

 Name:   

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
  

Received:  
 

22 August 2023 (Withdrawn 31st October 2023) 

23/05399/LIPN | Premises Licence - 102 Great Portland Street London W1W 6PD  
I am writing about the above application for a premises licence variation. I have lived in the 
immediate area for over 23 years , which is a residential block 

, some of whom are elderly, and situated very 

page 252



close to these premises.  

The information given in this application is very light on detail, but if I have read it correctly, it 
seems to be well out of place for this area – seeking to extend the licence to provide on- and 
off-sales from 0900 until half-past midnight seven days a week, and 0900 until 0200 on 
Christmas Day and Boxing Day.  
I believe the previous licence was to change from a small supermarket/sandwich shop to open a 
‘fine dining Indian restaurant’, and was for sales of alcohol to be limited to the operations as a 
restaurant, i.e., alcohol to be provided only to accompany a served meal, only from 0900 until 
11.00 or 11.30 pm, and with many conditions, and no ‘off-sales’.  
My comments are:  

1. As residents, we have supported sensible applications in tune with the area, which 
supports a number of busy businesses in the daytime. The nights are relatively quiet and 
peaceful, which is well appreciated by the people who live and sleep here. Number 102 
Great Portland Street is relatively close to our flats, and people entering and leaving, 
together with any noise emitted by customers, staff, suppliers and refuse disposal, will 
immediately become apparent to our block. The hours proposed are extremely late and 
well outside what is “normal” for the area. There is huge potential to be a public 
nuisance and the proposed changes would disturb many residents locally.  

2. The application appears to be very “light”, with insufficient detail for any serious 
consideration to be given, in my view. Among the details needed are: 
- Maximum numbers proposed for all areas of the building 
- Steps taken to control / minimise noise inside and outside of the building 
- Arrangement for control of smoking outside the building  

3. The hours proposed are well in excess of the existing licence. I particularly do not think 
the closing hours proposed for Sundays and the Christmas holiday period are 
appropriate; it is suggested that the site closes at 12.30 am every weekday and 0200 hrs 
on Christmas Day and Boxing Day – these hours should be reduced materially.  

4. The hours proposed are outside the “core hours” in Westminster’s policy, which are 
already beyond what residents would wish. The application is also contrary to WCC’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy.  

5. The application is made for ‘on-sales’ and ‘off-sales’. It should be made clear that the 
supply of alcohol is to be ancillary to table/served meals only. It must be made clear that 
no drinking outside the premises is to be permitted under any circumstances. This is not 
an area for breakfast binging or late-night drinking.  

6. I am not sure what will be done about diners wishing to smoke. In any event, they must 
not be permitted to drink outside while smoking and requirements regarding noise made 
need to be included.  

7. If qualified approval is given, compliance with PN1 – prevention of public nuisance – 
should be required, as well as conditions requiring measures to deal with the risk of 
nuisance.  

8. If there is any intention to use recorded and/or live music, any agreement to the 
application should apply a condition to ensure that no noise can be heard outside the 
premises so as to cause a nuisance.  

9. There is no mention of how late might dispersal of customers would be controlled. It 
would be next to impossible to avoid a huge amount of noise as patrons, some 
intoxicated, leave in the early hours, as well as the noise of car doors slamming and 
engines revving as cars and taxis leave.  

10. There is nothing in the application regarding how the restaurant will be serviced e.g., 
deliveries, preparation for daily business, and waste collection and avoiding nuisance to 
the neighbourhood.  

11. Is there a requirement for extraction and/or air conditioning equipment for the restaurant 
and/or basement? How will these be operated to avoid nuisance to near neighbours 
especially at night-times when people are sleeping?  

12. If the committee is minded to approve a limited licence for “off-sales” via takeaway and 
delivery, does the applicant propose to use its own delivery drivers or a third party, or a 

page 253



delivery app? How will these be controlled and what arrangements are made about 
parking during collection in an already congested street?  

13. There need to be the usual conditions about operating a restaurant.  
14. Providing takeaway or delivery options after 11.00 pm every night of every week offers 

significant scope for noise and public nuisance.  
15. In passing, I note that there could be well over 70 people in the building – does the fire 

exit meet safety standards for this number and are the toilet facilities adequate?  

I would like Mr Richard Brown to represent me at the hearing, to whom I am copying this letter.  

Further Submissions received on 24th September 2023 
 
Dear Licensing team 
 
I refer to my earlier representation about the above application and would like to add to my 
concerns.  
 
Living very near to the site, it seems from the outside and from an online search as if the 
cafe/bar is about to open as a cafe/bar.  
 
I understood that the existing licence had lapsed as it had never been operated. The earlier 
application 20/11994/LIPN also had a number of conditions - are these included in the current 
application and for similar hours? Is the new operator able to carry on with the previous licence 
and did it allow operations as a bar for late night drinks? 
 
Could you confirm that restrictions are in place to avoid cooking smells disturbing the flats 
above the site. 
 
The Interested Party have withdrawn their representation on the 31st October 2023 due to 
the reduction in hours and conditions agreed.  

 Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

  

Received:  
 

12 September 2023 

The FNA is the recognised Amenity society for the area;members and residents asked us to 
make a representation on their behalf; 
There are 5 residential units located above the premises. 
Their amenity is likely to be adversely impacted by the operations of this restaurant; the 
applicant does not advance any proposals to reduce or protect residents' amenity residing in the 
same building and nearby buildings; there are no conditions intended to reduce noise, nuisance, 
loitering outside the premises- as required under policy PN1- i.e. noise, smell. 
We note the lack of a proposed condition that alcohol would be axillary to the consumption of 
food at the premises, and there is no reference to the management of takeaways, or that off 
sales of alcohol would be auxiliary to the sale of food. 
We particularly object to granting a premises license beyond core hours for restaurant -policy 
HRS1 section 8 restaurants - Mon-Thurs: 0900-2330, fri and Sat: 0900-midnight, Sunday: 0900-
2330.  
The applicant did not explain why he applied for longer hours, nor did he suggest conditions to 
protect residents' amenities [noise and smell from the premises]. in fact, scant details are 
provided as to the nature of the operation, capacity, arrangement for delivery of food and 
rubbish collections [both should not take place during the night] , condition that alcohol sale 
would be auxiliary to the sale and provision of food, and proposal to manage the issue of people 
loitering outside the premises- either smokers or deliveries. 
 

page 254



 Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:   
 

 
  

Received:  
 

18 August 2023 (Withdrawn 17 October 2023) 

This establishment is already known historically for selling alcohol outside of permitted hours - 
and for decades. It attracts anti-social behaviour because of this and does little to serve the 
local community. If residents want to buy alcohol they can plan ahead and buy it at the already 
many - in fact far too many - outlets immediately available on their doorstep. 9am is also far too 
early to be selling alcohol. Granting of this license will only cause ABS and bring in drinkers 
from far and wide. 
 
The Interested Party have withdrawn their representation on the 17th October 2023 due to 
the conditions agreed with Environmental Health. 

  
3. Policy & Guidance 

 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies A. Applications within the core hours set out below in this policy will 
generally be granted for the relevant premises uses, subject to not 
being contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
B. Applications for hours outside the core hours set out in Clause 
C will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies, and with particular regard to the following: 
1. The demonstration of compliance in the requirements 
of policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1 associated with the 
likelihood of the effect of the grant of a licence for later or 
earlier hours on crime and disorder, public safety, public 
nuisance and the protection of children from harm. 
2. If the application is located within a Special Consideration Zone 
they have demonstrated that they have taken account of the 
issues identified in that area and provided adequate mitigation. 
3. Whether there is residential accommodation in the proximity of 
the premises that would likely be adversely affected by premises 
being open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed. 
4. The proposed hours of the licensable activities and when 
customers will be permitted to remain on the premises. 
5. The proposed hours when any music, including incidental music, 
will be played. 
6. The hours when customers will be allowed to take 
food or drink outside the premises or be within 
open areas which form part of the premises. 
7. The existing hours of licensable activities and the past operation 
of the premises (if any) and hours of licensable premises in the 
vicinity. 
8. Whether customers and staff have adequate access to public 
transport when arriving at and leaving the premises, especially at 
night. 
9. The capacity of the premises. 
10. The type of use, recognising that some venues are more likely to 
impact the licensing objectives than others; for example, pubs 
and bars are higher risk than theatres, cinemas and other cultural 
and sporting venues due to the nature of the operation. 

page 255



11. The Licensing Authority will take into account the active 
measures proposed for a ‘winding down’ period including 
arrangements for people to be collected from the premises to travel 
home safely. 
12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the supply 
of alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a suitable period 
of time before customers are required to leave the premises. 
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours 
if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying 
shorter hours in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable 
activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of 
applications for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into 
account that later hours are generally granted for preceding 
Sundays and that the next day is a working day. Non-specific days 
are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 
 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 

8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm.  
Friday and Saturday: 9am to 12am.  
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm.  
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am. 
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted.                                                           
E. For the purposes of this policy, ‘premises uses’ are defined within 
the relevant premises use policies within this statement. 

Policy RNT1 applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact 
Zone will generally be granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery 
of Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones 
Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
B. Applications inside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to: 
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
2. The hours for licensable activities are within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1. 
3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or latenight 
refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery 

page 256



of Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 
4. The applicant has demonstrated that they will not add to 
cumulative impact within the Cumulative Impact Zone. 
5. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C. 
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as: 
1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or 
the customer will select a table themselves to which food is 
either served to them or they have collected themselves. 
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a table. 
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink 
for immediate consumption, except if provided via an ancillary 
delivery service to customers at their residential or workplace 
address. 
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption 
of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be 
in a bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such meal. 

 
4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
5. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Karyn Abbott 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
Email: kabbott@westminster.gov.uk 
 

page 257



 
 
 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

01 October 2021 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

December 2022 

4 Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn 13 September 2023)  5 September 2023 

5 Environmental Health Service 13 September 2023 

6 Representation 1 (Withdrawn 21st November 2023) 13 September 2023 

7 Representation 2 19 August 2023 

8 Representation 3 (Withdrawn 31st October 2023) 22 August 2023 

9 Representation 4 12 September 2023 

10 Representation 5 (Withdrawn 17th October 2023) 18 August 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 258



 
Premises Plans          Appendix 1 

 

 
 

 

page 259



 

 

page 260



 
Applicant Supporting Documents        Appendix 2 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

page 261



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 262



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 263



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 264



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 265



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 266



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 267



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 268



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 269



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 270



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 271



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

page 272



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 273



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 274



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 275



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 

page 276



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 277



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 278



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 279



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 280



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

page 281



 
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 282



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 283



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 284



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 285



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 286



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 287



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 288



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 289



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 290



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

page 291



 

 
 

 

page 292



 
Premises History         Appendix 3 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

20/11994/LIPN New Premises Licence 
– Retail Sale of 
Alcohol Monday to 
Sunday 09:00 to 23:00 
 
Opening Hours – 
Monday to Friday 
07:00 to 23:30 
Saturday to Sunday 
08:00 to 23:30 

6 May 2021 Granted in Full by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

***Licence Holder dissolved in January 2023*** 
 

There is no appeal history for the premises. 
 
Temporary Event Notices 

Application Details of Application Date 
Determined 

Decision 

23/07683/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 3 November 
2023 

Notice Granted 

 
 

page 293



 
 

Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 294



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 295



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
None 
 
 

page 296



 
Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed with the applicant to 
form part of the operating schedule. 
 
9.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31-day period. 

  
10.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police Officer or authorised council officer copies of 
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
11.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g., to smoke, 

shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
  
12.  A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport, or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

  
13.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 

  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

  
14. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits and the outside smoking area 

requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly. 
  
15. Substantial Food and Non-Intoxicating Beverages, including drinking water shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises. 

  
16. There shall be no self-selection of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less 

than 5.5% ABV. 
  
17. Delivery drivers shall be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles in a 

responsible manner so as not to cause a nuisance to any residents or generally outside 
the license premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicles are parked; and 
not to obstruct the highway. 

  
18. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke or 

make a phone call, shall not be permitted to take glass containers with them. 
  
 

page 297



 
 
 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health and agreed with the applicant to form 
part of the operating schedule. 
 
19. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall 

not exceed: 
Ground Floor 50 persons. 
Basement Dining Room 20 persons. 
Outside area 4 persons 
With no more than 70 persons indoors and outdoors in total  

 
20. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall only be to a person seated 

taking a table meal there and for the consumption by such a person as ancillary to their 
meal. 

 
21. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall be by Server, Waiter or 

Waitress service only. 
 
22. Notwithstanding condition 2 and 3 above, alcohol may be supplied to and consumed by 

up to 6 persons at any one time, prior to their meal in the bar area (designated on the 
plan). 

 
23. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only 

and ancillary to a take-away meal, except for persons seated at the external table and 
chairs.   

  
24. Deliveries of food and drink shall only be made to a bonafide residential or business 

addresses. 
 
25. No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed premises so as to cause a 

nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where the premises 
are situated. 

 
26. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises 

do so in an orderly manner to ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of 
the public highway.  

  
27. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
28. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours except for the 

immediate access and egress of persons. 
 
29. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
30. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
31. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the following day. 
 
 

page 298



32. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall 
take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day. 

 
33. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23.00 and 08.00 hours on the 

following day. 
 
34. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 

measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
Conditions proposed by an Interested Party and agreed with the applicant to form part of 
the operating schedule. 
 
35. There shall be no consumption of alcohol outside the premises building. 
 
36. There shall be no sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 11pm.  
 
37. No deliveries from the premises, either by the licensee or a third party, shall take place 

between (23:00) and (08:00) hours on the following day.  
 

page 299



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                             Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident Count: 288 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 102 Great Portland Street, London 
 

Licence Number  Trading 
Name  

 Address  Premises 
Type  

 Time Period 

20/00591/LIPV Fugazzina Basement And 
Ground Floor 104 
Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 6PE 

Shop Sunday; 08:00 - 
22:30 | Monday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:00 

23/03292/LIPDPS The Gurkhas Basement And 
Ground Floor 110 
Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 6PQ 

Restaurant Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 

17/14779/LIPCHT Sushi Atelier 114 Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 6PH 

Cafe Sunday; 07:00 - 
22:45 | Monday to 
Thursday; 07:00 - 
23:45 | Friday to 
Saturday; 07:00 - 
00:15 | Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 07:00 - 
00:00 

21/00262/LIPT Not Recorded 94 Great Portland 
Street London 

Not 
Recorded 

Monday to Friday; 
08:00 - 21:00 | 

page 300



W1W 7NU Saturday to Sunday; 
09:00 - 21:00 

17/02261/LIPDPS Club West 
One 

Wogan House 99 
Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 7NY 

Studio Monday to Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

16/13088/LIPCH BBC Wogan House 99 
Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 7NY 

Not 
Recorded 

Monday to Sunday; 
07:00 - 00:00 

23/00949/LIPCH The Grange 
Langham 
Court Hotel 

31-35 Langham 
Street London 
W1W 6BU 

Hotel, 3 
star or 
under 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 - 
00:00 

23/06290/LIPT The Whisky 
Exchange 

90 Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 7NT 

Shop Sunday; 10:00 - 
18:00 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
20:00 

23/03683/LIPDPS Java Whiskers 105 Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 6QF 

Cafe Monday; 10:00 - 
20:00 | Tuesday; 
10:00 - 20:00 | 
Wednesday; 10:00 - 
20:00 | Thursday; 
10:00 - 21:00 | 
Friday; 10:00 - 
21:00 | Saturday; 
10:00 - 21:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 
20:00 

23/00066/LIPDPS Yorkshire Grey 
Public House 

46 Langham 
Street London 
W1W 7AX 

Public 
house or 
pub 
restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 

23/04086/LIPDPS Yorkshire Grey 
Public House 

46 Langham 
Street London 
W1W 7AX 

Public 
house or 
pub 
restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 

23/02021/LIPVM Drunch And 
Kave 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 71 
Great Titchfield 
Street London 
W1W 6RB 

Cafe Monday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Tuesday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Wednesday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Friday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 

17/11140/LIPN Townhouse Basement And 
Ground Floor 88 
Great Portland 
Street London 
W1W 7NT 

Hairdresser 
or beauty 
salon 

Monday to Sunday; 
07:00 - 23:00 

 
 

page 301



 
 
 
 

page 302


	Agenda
	1. 8 Carlos Place, W1K 3AW
	LSC Report - 8 Carlos Place_Redacted_Part2

	2. Koyn, 38 Grosvenor Street, W1K 4QU
	3. Petite Cafe London, 102 Great Portland Street, W1W 6PD



